
 

City of Alvin, Texas  
 

Paul Horn, Mayor 
 

Keith Thompson, Mayor Pro-tem, District C Adam Arendell, District B 
Brad Richards, At Large Pos. 1 Glenn Starkey, District D 
Joel Castro, At Large Pos. 2 Gabe Adame, District E 
Scott Reed, District A  

 
 

ALVIN CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  
THURSDAY FEBRUARY 7, 2019 

 7:00 P.M.  
 (Council Chambers) 

 
Alvin City Hall, 216 West Sealy, Alvin, Texas 77511 

Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting that will require special services please contact the City Secretary’s Office at 281-388-4255 
or droberts@cityofalvin.com 48 hours prior to the meeting time.  City Hall is wheel chair accessible and a sloped curb entry is available at the east 
and west entrances to City Hall.  
 

NOTICE is hereby given of a Regular Meeting and Executive Session of the City Council of the City 
of Alvin, Texas, to be held on THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 7, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers at: City Hall, 216 W. Sealy, Alvin, Texas. 

 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
4. PUBLIC HEARING 

 
A. Public hearing to receive comment on the proposed Strategic Partnership Agreement (SPA) 

for the Martha’s Vineyard Development, more formally described as Brazoria County 
Municipal Utility District Number 24 – second public hearing. 

 
5. CONSENT AGENDA: CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: An item(s) may be 

removed from the Consent Agenda for full discussion by the request of a member of Council.  Item(s) removed will automatically 
become the first item up for discussion under Other Business. 

 
A. Consider approval of the January 17, 2019 City Council meeting minutes. 

 
B. Consider approval of the January 28, 2019 Special City Council meeting minutes. 

 
C. Consider Resolution 19-R-05, calling and establishing the procedures for the May 4, 2019 

General Election in Alvin, Texas, and providing for related matters thereto. 
 

D. Consider a final plat of Zuniga Place, (located at 4566 County Road 181), being a subdivision 
of 7.9961 acres, in the A.C.H. & B. Survey, Section 26, A-471, Brazoria County, Texas. 
 

E. Consider the Master Preliminary Plat of Mustang Ridge (located along Mustang Road, across 
from Alvin Community College), being a planned unit development of 35.35 acres of land 
located in the H.T.& B.R.R. Company Survey, A-225, City of Alvin, Brazoria County, Texas. 
 

6. OTHER BUSINESS 

mailto:droberts@cityofalvin.com


AGENDA - 2 -                                        February 7, 2019 

 
A. Consider Ordinance 19-C, annexing 23.004 acres of land, more or less, into the corporate limits 

of the City, for Forest Heights Section 7; approving a service plan for the annexed area; making 
findings of fact; providing a severability clause; and providing an effective date. 
 

B. Consider a License Agreement for the Exclusive Use of City Property between the City of 
Alvin and the Alvin Sunrise Rotary Foundation for the Music Fest and Bar-B-Q Cook Off to 
be held at Briscoe Park from Friday, March 22, 2019, to Sunday, March 24, 2019; and 
authorize the City Manager to sign said agreement subject to legal review. 
 

C. Consider Resolution 19-R-07, amending the Alvin Museum Agreement related to the Alvin 
Museum Society’s utilization of the former Alvin Post Office building; and authorize the 
Mayor to sign said agreement subject to legal review. 
 

D. Consider Resolution 19-R-08, releasing and terminating two (2) utility easements previously 
granted to the City of Alvin on property located near the southeast corner of Bypass 35 and 
Highway 6.   
 

E. Consider Resolution 19-R-09, requesting that the members of the 86th Legislative Session of 
the State of Texas support legislation that provides stewardship, health and wellbeing, and 
connectivity for local and state parks. 

 
7. REPORTS FROM CITY MANAGER  

 
A. Review preliminary list of items for next Council meeting. 

 
8. ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST 

Pursuant to 551.0415 of the Texas Government Code reports or an announcement about items of community interest during a 
meeting of the governing body. No action will be taken or discussed. 
 

A. Hear announcements concerning items of community interest from the Mayor, Council 
members, and City staff, for which no action will be discussed or taken.   

 
9. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

City Council will meet in Executive Session pursuant to:  
 

A. Section 551.074 of the Government Code: Deliberation on the appointment, employment, 
evaluation, reassignment, duties, or discipline of a public officer or employee. 

 
1. Employment of a Chief Financial Officer. 

 
10. RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 

 
11. ADJOURNMENT 

 

I hereby certify that a copy of this notice was posted on the City Hall bulletin board, a place convenient and readily 
accessible to the general public at all times, and to the City’s website: www.alvin-tx.gov, in compliance with Chapter 
551, Texas Government Code on MONDAY, FEBRUARY 4, 2019 at 4:00 P.M.  
         

________________________________ 
 (SEAL)       Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 

 
 
Removal Date:______________________ 

** All meetings of the City Council are open to the public, except when there is a necessity to meet in Executive Session (closed to the public) under 
the provisions of Chapter 551, Texas Government Code. The Council reserves the right to convene into executive session on any of the above posted 
agenda items that qualify for an executive session by publicly announcing the applicable section of the Open Meetings Act, including but not limited 
to sections 551.071 (litigation and certain consultation with the attorney), 551.072 (acquisition of interest in real property), 551.073 (contract for gift to 
city), 551.074 (certain personnel deliberations), or 551.087 (qualifying economic development negotiations). 

http://www.alvin-tx.gov/


MINUTES
CITYOFALVIN, TEXAS

CITYPLANNINGCOMMISSION
December18, 2018

BEITREMEMBERED, thatontheabove date, thePlanning Commission metintheFirst
FloorConference Room, atPublic Services Facility, 1100WestHighway 6, Alvin, Texas,  
at6:00P.M. withthefollowing members present, Martin Vela, Chair; JakeStarkey, Vice
Chair; Ashley Davis; Santos Garza; Charles Buckelew; andChrisHartman. Alsopresent
werestaffmembers Michelle Segovia, CityEngineer andShana Church, Executive
Secretary. Nicole Kelinske, Darrell Dailey andRandy Reedwereabsent.  

1. CallToOrder.   
Calltoorderat6:00p.m.  

2. PetitionandRequestsfromthePublic.    
Therewerenopetitions orrequests fromthepublic.  

3. ApprovetheMinutesofthePlanningCommissionmeetingofNovember27, 2018.  
Commission Member Santos Garza motioned toapprove theminutes oftheregular
Planning Commission meeting ofNovember 27, 2018. Seconded byCharles Buckelew,  
themotion carried onavoteof5ayesand0nays. Ashley Davisarrived at6:01p.m. after
thevote.   

4. ConsiderafinalplatofGuerreroSubdivision, beingatotalof4.58acresofland
outofacalled12.074acretractasrecordedanddescribedinC.C.F. #2015001049,  
O.R.B.C.T. situatedintheI. & G.N.R.R. Co. survey, section28, abstract621,  
BrazoriaCounty, Texas. CityEngineer recommends finalplat fordiscussion and
approval. Commission Member Garza motioned torecommend forapproval toCity
Council. Seconded byMember Buckelew, themotion carriedonavoteof6ayes, 0nays.  

5. ConsiderafinalplatofMarinaPark, beingaplatof2.983acres, beingacalled4
acretract, andpartoflots16and17oftheDolsonandNelsonSubdivision, H.T. &  
B.R.R. Companysurvey, abstract227, BrazoriaCounty, Texas, locatedintheCity
ofAlvin. CityEngineer recommends finalplat fordiscussion andapproval. Commission
Member Hartman motioned torecommend forapproval toCityCouncil. Seconded by
Member Davis, themotion carried onavoteof6ayes, 0nays.  

6. Considerafinalplatof413WestBlum, LLC, beingaplatoflotsoneandtwo,  
block44, Alvinno. 1, asrecordedinvolume32, pages4and5, deedrecords,  
BrazoriaCounty, Texas, toincludevariancerequeststolotsizeandstreetside
setback. CityEngineer recommends finalplat fordiscussion andapproval. Commission
Member Starkey motioned torecommend forapproval toCityCouncil. Seconded by
Member Garza, themotion carried onavoteof6ayes, 0nays.  

7. ConsideramasterpreliminaryplatofFairwayLake/ParksideTrails, beinga



plannedunitdevelopment, being30.3acresoflandoutoftheH.T. & B.R.R.  
Companysurvey, A-225BrazoriaCounty, Texas, alsobeingapartialreplatof
reserves “A” & “C” ofthefinalplatofAlvinFairwayLakeproperty, asrecordedin
doc. 2018038022, O.R.B.C.T. CityEngineer recommends master preliminary plat for
discussion andapproval. Commission Member Hartman motioned torecommend for
approval toCityCouncil. Seconded byMember Davis, themotion carried onavoteof5
ayes, 1naycastbyCharles Buckelew.  

8. ConsiderarequestfromBuddyWebb & Company, representingO’ReillyAuto
PartsforavariancetothebuildingfaçaderequirementswithinChapter35-19ofthe
CorridorLandUseRegulations. CityEngineer recommends variance request for
discussion andapproval. Commission Member Velamotioned todenythevariance
request. Seconded byMember Garza, themotion carried onavoteof5ayes, 1naycast
byChrisHartman.  

9. ItemsofCommunityInterest.  
Therewerenoitemsofcommunity interest.  

10. Staffreportandupdate.  
Michelle Segovia statedCityCouncil hasreappointed Mr. Hartman toPlanning
Commission foranother3yearterm. CityCouncil alsoappointed twoadditional members;  
Carrie ParkerandRichard Garivey.  

11. Itemsforthenextmeeting.  
Michelle Segovia stated thePlanning Commission will likelyseethefinalplatfor
Huntington Place, Section 3andaresidential development onMustang Roadatthenext
meeting. Michelle Segovia spoke toJunruRoland afterourlastmeeting regarding the
Planned UnitDevelopment section oftheSubdivision Ordinance. LarryBuehler attended
ourlastmeeting anddidaverynicesummary ofallthediscussions. Larry forwarded iton
toJunru. Mr. Roland isinfavorof scheduling a jointworkshop between Planning
Commission andCityCouncil andisgoing togetwiththeMayor aboutsetting anagenda.  

12. Adjournment.  
Commission Member Buckelew motioned toadjourn themeeting, seconded byMember
Hartman. Themotion carried onavoteof6ayes. Themeeting endedat7:10p.m.  



MINUTES 

CITY OF ALVIN 

PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD MEETING 

1100 W. HWY. 6 

DECEMBER 4, 2018 

6:30 P.M. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 
The meeting was called to order by Dwight Rhodes, Chair at 6:40 p.m.  

 

ROLL CALL 
Board members present were Dwight Rhodes, Chair; Terrie Beasley, Vice-Chair; Carrie Parker, 
Secretary; Milton Morgan, Jamie Vaughn and Kerry Ulm. Other Attendees: Dan Kelinske, 
Director of Parks and Recreation.   

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Kerry Ulm moved to approve the minutes of November 6, 2018.   Seconded by Jamie Vaughn; 

motion passed unanimously.  
 

PETITIONS/REQUEST FROM THE PUBLIC 

There were no petitions or request from the public.  
 

CHAIRMAN REPORT  

There was no report from the chairman. 

DIRECTOR REPORT 

A. Update on Upcoming Events. 

• KaBoom Playground build day November 17, 2018 there were 117 attendees.  

• Christmas movie and kids activities held on November 30, 2018; there were 152 

attendees. 

• Home for the Holidays event and parade was held on December 1, 2018 there were 

2000 attendees and 16 entries in the parade. 

• Santa Mailboxes remain at HEB and Kroger. 

B. Update on park projects/improvements  

• Mustang Bayou bank repair is on schedule. Engineering firm will provide drawings by 
beginning of January.  

• Account balances  
o Tree preservation $22,300 
o ASR Donation (JAN) $18,158.43 (new balance reported $16818.60 Dan will 

investigate.)  
o Park Dedication $262,605.83 

o $181,905.83 locked to quadrants 
o $80,700 unlocked and can be allocated as needed. 

• KaBoom Build completed on November 17th.  The grand opening was held on 
November 20th.  



• FY2019 funded Capital Improvement projects: 
o Pearson Park Sidewalk - $150,000 
o Disc Golf - $300,000 bid opening was held on December 11th.  
o Design/Engineering Phase III H&B $100,000;  Kimley/Horn expect to have 

preliminary drawings this month.  

• YTD 2018 enrollments: 
o Course Participants : 628 
o Course Enrollment Transactions: 638 
o General Enrollment : 542 
o Online Enrollment : 96 
o Event Participants: 3899 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

• A discussion was had on the FY19 park capital improvements recommendations list. 

• A discussion was had on the asphalt right of way located parallel to 2nd Street. Terrie 
Beasley moved to take request to City Council to designate 2nd street right- of- way 
for parks use only.  Seconded by Jamie Vaughn; motion passed unanimously.  

 

ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST 

Parks signs need refreshing.  Dan will order new signs for the 3 parks that still have the old-
style signage. Newman Park sign will be ordered first.  Other 2 will follow later.  
 

UPCOMING MEETINGS: 

• The next Parks and Recreation Board Meeting will be held on  January 8, 2019 at 

6:30PM.   

ADJOURNMENT  

The meeting was called to adjourn at 7:45 p.m. by Dwight Rhodes.     

 

 



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   2/7/2019 

Department:  Economic Development Contact:  Larry Buehler, Economic Development Dir.  
 
Agenda Item:   Public hearing to receive comment on proposed Strategic Partnership Agreement for the 

Martha’s Vineyard Development, more formally described as Brazoria County Municipal 
Utility District Number 24 – second public hearing.   
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☒Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   This is the second of two required public hearings for the Strategic Partnership Agreement for the 
Martha’s Vineyard Development, more formally described as Brazoria County Municipal Utility District 
Number 24.  LESCO Enterprises Inc. is developing approximately 109 acres for a residential subdivision. The 
property is located northwest of the Highway 6 and CR 146 intersection in the City of Alvin Extraterritorial 
Jurisdiction (ETJ) and is being subdivided for a new single family residential Planned Unit Development 
subdivision containing 315 lots and 19 reserves. The Developer plans to construct the subdivision in three 
sections. The subdivision will be serviced by City utilities via ETJ Municipal Utility District (MUD) No. 24 
based on the Utility Services Contract that was approved by Council on February 4, 2016. The Contract calls out 
for the creation of a Strategic Partnership Agreement. The Strategic Partnership Agreement will delineate how 
fire, police, garbage collections, water, wastewater, and drainage will be provided. City Council held the first 
public hearing on January 3, 2019. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 1/30/2019 SLH 
 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Notice of Public Hearing 
 

 
Recommendation:   N/A 

 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 



Newspaper Public Hearing Notice - SPA 

NOTICE OF HEARING REGARDING ADOPTION OF A STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP 
AGREEMENT WITH BRAZORIA COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 24 
 
Notice is hereby given that the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, will hold a public 
hearing regarding its consideration of the adoption of a Strategic Partnership Agreement 
(the “SPA”) with Brazoria County Municipal Utility District No. 24 at 7:00 p.m., on 
February 7, 2019 at the Alvin City Hall, 216 W. Sealy, Alvin, Texas.  At the hearing, any 
interested person shall have a reasonable opportunity to speak for or against the City’s 
adoption of the SPA.  A copy of the proposed SPA may be obtained prior to hearing at 
City Hall.       



MINUTES 
CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 
216 W. SEALY STREET 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
THURSDAY JANUARY 17, 2019 

7:00 P.M. 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
BE IT REMEMBERED that, on the above date, the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, met in 
Regular Session at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at City Hall, with the following members 
present: Paul A. Horn, Mayor; Keith Thompson, Mayor Pro-Tem and Councilmembers: Gabe 
Adame, Adam Arendell, Joel Castro, Brad Richards, Scott Reed and Glen Starkey.   

 
Staff members present:  Junru Roland, City Manager; Suzanne Hanneman, City Attorney; Dixie 
Roberts, City Secretary; Florence Chapa, Interim Finance Director; Larry Buehler, Director of 
Economic Development; Michelle Segovia, City Engineer; Rex Klesel, Fire Chief; Dan Kelinske, 
Parks Director and Robert E. Lee, Police Chief.  

 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Loretta Smith with First Christian Church gave the invocation.   
 

Boy Scout Troop 400 led the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and the Pledge to the 
Texas Flag. 

 
PRESENTATIONS 
Finance, Municipal Court and Utility Billing Departmental Update 
This is the second of two required public hearings for this annexation requested by Don Barras of Don Barras 
Development LLC.  He is petitioning the City to annex 23.004 acres of his property in Forest Heights for the development 
of Section 7 located along the proposed FM 528 extension between Business 35 and Highway 6.   
 
The first public hearing was held before City Council on January 3rd.  No comments were made.  Notices for this public 
hearing were published in The Alvin Sun, and on the City’s website, as required by law. 
 
Florence Chapa, Interim Finance Director gave a Departmental update including utility billing and 
the accounting division. Judge Deanie King gave an update on Municipal Court.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
There were no comments from the public.  

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
Public hearing regarding the annexation of 23.004 acres, more or less, for Forest Heights, Section 7, 
located along the proposed FM 528 extension, between Business 35 and State Highway 6, from Don 
Barras Development, LLC. – second public hearing. 

 
Mayor Horn opened the public hearing at 7:24 p.m. There were no comments made. Mayor Horn 
closed the public hearing at 7:24 p.m. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Consider approval of the January 3, 2019 City Council meeting minutes. 
 
Consider the 2019 Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Services with Brazoria County Emergency 
Services District #3 (ESD); and authorize the Mayor to sign upon legal review. 
The Emergency Services District was first formed in 2004.  Brazoria County Commissioners will select the five (5) ESD 
Board of Directors to provide funding for Fire and Emergency Medical Services (EMS) to the approximate 120 square 
miles surrounding the city limits of Alvin. The homeowners in the ESD annually pay approximately $100 per $100,000 
on the value of their home or business.  



MINUTES - 2 -                                        January 17, 2019 

 
  In 2018, the ESD paid a total of $700,000 to the City of Alvin for the following Emergency Services:  

• $350,000 for Fire and Rescue 
• $350,000 for Emergency Medical Services 

The 2019 proposed ESD Agreement with the City of Alvin will increase to a total of $731,000 (4.43% increase) to the 
City of Alvin for the following Emergency Services: 
 

• $362,000 ($12,000 increase) for Fire and Rescue 
• $369,000 ($19,000 increase) for Emergency Medical Services 

 
Staff recommends approval. 
 
Acknowledge receipt of the Financial and Quarterly Investment Reports ending December 2018. 
The City Charter requires the Chief Financial Officer to report on the financial condition of the City.  In addition, the 
City’s investment policy requires the Chief Financial Officer to submit an investment report to the City Manager, the 
Mayor, and City Council each quarter. 
 
Acknowledge receipt of the Fiscal Year 2019 Capital Improvement Projects Report. 
Staff continues to carry out actions on budgeted projects as defined in the 2019 Capital Improvements Plan (CIP).  This 
report is an update as to the progress of each project year to date. 
 
Consider Resolution 19-R-04, adopting a Citizen Participation Plan as set forth by the Texas General 
Land Office (GLO) for the Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery (CDBG-DR) 
Program; providing for Open Meetings and other related matters. 
The City plans to apply for upcoming Community Development Block Grant – Disaster Recovery funding from the 
General Land Office – Community Development & Revitalization (GLO). Grant Works was selected by the City for the 
application and administrative services for this process.   
 
The adoption of this specific Citizen Participation Plan is required by the GLO and must be submitted as part of the 
application process in an effort to secure grant funding.  Staff recommended the approval of Resolution 19-R-04. 
 

Consider the appointment of former Alvin Police Department Officer Carlos Bautista, Jr. as a Reserve 
Police Officer for the City of Alvin Police Department.  
Carlos Bautista Jr., a former Alvin Police Department Officer, has applied to become a Reserve Police Officer with the 
Alvin Police Department. Mr. Bautista, an army veteran, worked for the Alvin Police Department from January 2006 until 
December 2011, at which time he left Alvin for the Houston Police Department. Mr. Bautista worked for the City of 
Houston for approximately 4.5 years, at which time he left to take employment with a plant. A thorough background 
investigation, including a polygraph examination has been completed. In Mr. Bautista’s 10 plus years in law enforcement, 
he received very good reviews and several commendations. Current Officers with the Alvin Police Department who worked 
with him during his Alvin employment speak very highly of him and give him high recommendations, as do former Houston 
co-workers. Staff recommended approval of the appointment of Carlos Bautista, Jr. as a Reserve Officer.  
 
Texas Local Government Code Section 341.012(g) 
City of Alvin, Code of Ordinances Chapter 15 Article III Police Reserve Force  
Section 15-53. - Appointment, approval and removal of members; a Members of the police reserve force shall be appointed at the 
discretion of the chief of police, but no person appointed to the police reserve force may carry a weapon or otherwise act as a peace 
officer until he/she has been approved by the city council. Any member may be removed at any time at the discretion of the chief of 
police.  

  
Staff recommends approval of the appointment of Carlos Bautista Jr. as a Reserve Officer for APD. 
 
Council member Adame moved to approve the consent agenda as presented.  Seconded by Council 
member Thompson; motion carried on a vote of 7 Ayes.  
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
Consider Resolution 19-R-03, supporting Texas Transportation Commission action toward the 
expediated construction of “Segment B” of SH 99 (Grand Parkway) from south of Alvin in Brazoria 
County to Interstate 45 in Galveston County; and setting forth other related matter. 



MINUTES - 3 -                                        January 17, 2019 

 
The Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT), under direction of the Texas Transportation Commission, continues 
to design and construct segments of State Highway 99 (Grand Parkway). The City of Alvin, along with County 
Commissioner Stacy Adams, County Judge Matt Sebesta, and with the additional leadership of State Representative Ed 
Thompson House District 29, have been meeting with TxDOT Officials for approximately two years. Segment B is better 
described as running from Interstate 45 toward SH 35 and on to SH 288 near Rosharon through Galveston and Brazoria 
Counties. The purpose is to help advance the final design and construction of Segment B that will go through Brazoria 
and Galveston Counties. With the Texas Legislature starting their 86th Legislative Session, a renewed push is being 
launched to gain legislative support to help expedite Segment B through the counties. Mayor Paul Horn plans to appear 
before the Texas Transportation Commission on January 31st to discuss this important matter and deliver a request on 
behalf of the City of Alvin to be on the Transportation Commission agenda in February. Staff recommended approval of 
Resolution 19-R-03.   
 
Council member Arendell moved to approve Resolution 19-R-03, supporting Texas Transportation 
Commission action toward the expediated construction of “Segment B” of SH 99 (Grand Parkway) 
from south of Alvin in Brazoria County to Interstate 45 in Galveston County; and setting forth other 
related matter. Seconded by Council member Reed; motion carried on a vote of 7 Ayes. 
 
Consider Ordinance 19-B, granting consent to the creation of Brazoria County Municipal Utility 
District Number 51; containing various provisions related to the foregoing subject; and making certain 
findings related thereto. 
On December 14, 2018, the City received a Petition for Consent to the Creation of a Municipal Utility District from 
Lando Development, Ltd., for 137.6228 acres of land, more or less, all of which is either in or will be incorporated into 
the corporate limits of the City. 
 
The Developer proposes to develop this land for single and multi-family residential and commercial uses and claims that 
there is not now available within the area an adequate waterworks system, sanitary sewer system, or drainage and storm 
sewer system. Petitioner states that a public necessity exists for the creation of the District to provide for such systems to 
promote the purity and sanitary condition of the State’s waters and the public health and welfare of the community.  The 
landowner has consented to conditions, which are attached to the Ordinance as Exhibit B.  These conditions will ensure 
the approval by the City of all plans and specifications for the construction of certain water, sewer and drainage 
infrastructure facilities, the sale of bonds, and the coordination and allocation of projects.  Staff recommended approval 
of Ordinance 19-B. 
 
Council member Thompson moved to approve Ordinance No. 19-B, granting consent to the creation 
of Brazoria County Municipal Utility District Number 51; containing various provisions related to 
the foregoing subject; and making certain findings related thereto.  Seconded by Council member 
Starkey; motion carried on a vote of 7 Ayes. 
 
Consider an award of bid to T & C Construction, Ltd., for the Lift Stations 14 and 17 Rehabilitation 
Project in an amount not to exceed $867,672.75; and authorize the City Manager to sign the contract 
upon legal review.   
On December 18, 2018, bids were opened for the Lift Stations 14 and 17 Rehabilitation Project, and T & C Construction, Ltd. was the 
qualified low bidder.  LJA Engineering, the City’s consultant that designed the project, reviewed all bids that were 
received and has recommended T & C Construction, Ltd. for this project. 
 
Original Project Estimate: $1,300,000  
 
Contract Amount:                   $ 826,355 (Base Bid, Supplementary, and Coating Alternate Bid Item.) 
5% Contingency:                $ 41,317.75 
Total Amount:                  $867,672.75 
 
This project consists of the rehabilitation of sanitary sewer lift stations 14 (205 Old Galveston Road) and 17 (545 
Hathaway Street). This rehabilitation project will include removal/replacement of pumps, rails, controls, electrical 
systems, along with seating and coating of concrete wet wells, modifications to piping, and site work. These improvements 
were based on recommendations in the 2015 Utility Master Plan by Freese and Nichols, Inc. that was approved by City 
Council on March 3, 2016.  This project will be paid from the 2018 Revenue Bond proceeds that were approved by 
Council on August 21, 2018.    



MINUTES - 4 -                                        January 17, 2019 

 
The project is scheduled to start in February 2019 and has a construction time of 210 calendar days.  Staff recommended 
the award of bid to T&C Construction, Ltd. 
 

Council member Arendell moved to award bid to T & C Construction, Ltd., for the Lift Stations 14 
and 17 Rehabilitation Project in an amount not to exceed $867,672.75; and authorize the City 
Manager to sign the contract upon legal review.    Seconded by Council member Richards; motion 
carried on a vote of 7 Ayes.  
 
Discuss Senior Citizen transportation.   
A discussion was had on transportation for senior citizens. Councilmember Starkey explained that he 
and Council member Castro would be meeting with the senior citizens to inquire about the 
transportation needs of the senior citizen.  Council member Arendell mentioned that a study was 
performed a few years back that would that would be of aid.  Mayor Horn appointed Council member 
Castro and Starkey to perform a study on the transportation needs and bring back a report to Council.   
 
REPORTS FROM CITY MANAGER  
Review preliminary list of items for next Council meeting. 
Mr. Junru Roland, City Manager, reviewed the preliminary list for the February 7th City Council 
meeting. 

 
ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST 
Hear announcements concerning items of community interest from the Mayor, Council members, and 
City staff, for which no action will be discussed or taken.   
Mrs. Roberts reviewed items of community interest.   
 
Council member Reed thanked the Finance Department and Municipal Court for its informative 
presentation.  
 
Mayor Horn thanked Municipal Court Judge King for her presentation.  

 
ADJOURNMENT 
Mayor Horn adjourned the meeting at 7:46 p.m. 
 
 
PASSED and APPROVED the ______ day of _____________ 2019. 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Paul A. Horn, Mayor 
 

           
 

ATTEST: ____________________________ 
                Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 

 



MINUTES 
CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 
216 W. SEALY STREET 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY JANUARY 28, 2019 

6:00 P.M. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
BE IT REMEMBERED that, on the above date, the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, met in 
Regular Session at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at City Hall, with the following members 
present: Mayor Paul A. Horn; Keith Thompson, Mayor Pro-tem; and Councilmembers: Joel Castro, 
Brad Richards, Scott Reed and Glen Starkey.   
 
Staff members present:  Junru Roland, City Manager; Suzanne Hanneman, City Attorney; Dixie 
Roberts, City Secretary; and Florence Chapa, Interim Chief Financial Officer.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Mayor Horn led the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag, and Texas Flag. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
Consider Resolution 19-R-06, directing staff to implement procedures to grant to federal employees 
and contractors affected by the federal government shutdown additional time to pay bills for city 
services that are not discretionary. 
On December 22, 2018, at 12:00 a.m., funding for 23% of the agencies of the United States government ceased.  The 
government shutdown caused by the cessation in funding affects approximately 800,000 federal and contract employees 
who missed their first paycheck on January 11, 2019.  City Council believes that the City should do what it can to avoid 
compounding the financial hardship experienced by Alvin residents who are affected by the federal government shutdown; 
 
City Manager will implement procedures for the benefit of federal employees and contractors affected by the government 
shutdown that will: (a) waive all penalties and/or fees for late payment of City bills; (b) allow additional time for payment 
of bills for non-discriminatory City services; and (c) refrain from shutting off City services for nonpayment of bills. 
 
A brief discussion was held. 
 
Council member Castro moved to approve Resolution 19-R-06, directing staff to implement 
procedures to grant to federal employees and contractors affected by the federal government shutdown 
additional time to pay bills for city services that are not discretionary.  Seconded by Council member 
Starkey; motion carried on a vote of 5 Ayes.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Mayor Horn adjourned the meeting at 6:10 p.m. 
 
 
 
PASSED and APPROVED the ______ day of February 2019. 
 
 
 
__________________________  
  Paul A. Horn, Mayor  
 

ATTEST: ___________________________  
                             Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 
    
 



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   2/7/2019 

Department:  City Secretary Contact: Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 
 
Agenda Item:   Consider Resolution 19-R-05, calling and establishing the procedures for the May 4, 2019 

General Election in Alvin, Texas, and providing for related matters thereto. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☒Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   This resolution is calling for a General Election for Saturday, May 4, 2019, to elect members to 
City Council District A, District D, and At Large Position 2.   
 
The City of Alvin will contract with the Brazoria County Elections Office to conduct this election. Brazoria 
County has the voting equipment required to conduct elections.  The City Secretary’s Office will handle the 
filings and all required paperwork and postings as required by state election law.   
 
The first day to file for a place on the May 2019 ballot was Wednesday, January 16, 2019, and will continue 
through Friday, February 15, 2019.   
 
Early Voting will begin on Monday, April 22, 2019, and will go through Tuesday, April 30, 2019, and will be 
held at the Alvin Library.  Voters can cast their ballot at any Early Voting location throughout Brazoria County. 
 

Early Voting Locations: 
Angleton:  East Annex, 1524 E. Mulberry 

Alvin:  Alvin Library, 105 S. Gordon 
Brazoria:  Brazoria Library, 620 S. Brooks 

Freeport:  Freeport Library, 410 Brazosport Blvd. 
Lake Jackson:  Lake Jackson Library, 250 Circle Way 

Manvel:  North Annex, 7313 Corporate Dr. 
Pearland East:  Tom Reid Library, 3522 Liberty Dr. 

Pearland West:  Westside Event Center, 2150 Country Place Pkwy. 
Shadow Creek:  Pearland Westside Library, 2803 Business Center Dr. #101 

Sweeny:  Sweeny Community Center, 205 W. Ashley Wilson Rd. 
West Columbia:  New Precinct 4 Building, 121 N. 10th Street 

 
Early voting dates and hours: 

April 22-26; 8am-5pm 
April 27; 7am-7pm 

April 29-30; 7am-7pm 
 
Election Day voting will be held at the Alvin Library.  Voters can also cast their ballot at any Voting Center in 
Brazoria County.  An election contract with Brazoria County for the May 4th General Election will be brought 
before City Council for consideration at a future meeting.   



 

Staff recommends approval of Resolution 19-R-05. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☒ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☐ Budgeted Item: Yes ☒ No ☐ N/A ☐ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☐ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☐    Date Completed: 1/30/2019 SLH 
 
 

Supporting documents attached: 

• Resolution 19-R-05 and Attachment “A” 
• Election Calendar 

 
Recommendation:   Move to approve Resolution 19-R-05, calling and establishing the procedures for the 

May 4, 2019 General Election in Alvin, Texas, and providing for related matters 
thereto. 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 



RESOLUTION 19-R-05 
 

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, 
TEXAS, ESTABLISHING THE PROCEDURE FOR THE MAY 4, 2019, 
GENERAL ELECTION IN ALVIN, TEXAS; AND PROVIDING FOR 
RELATED MATTERS. 

 
 WHEREAS, on May 4, 2019, there shall be elected the following officials for this City: a 
member to City Council District A, City Council District D, and At Large Position 2; for a term of 
three (3) years;  
 
 WHEREAS, the Texas Election Code is applicable to the election and this Resolution 
establishes procedures consistent with the Code, and designates the voting places and times for the 
election; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Alvin, Texas (hereinafter the “City”) has made provision to 
contract with Brazoria County to conduct the City’s election, pursuant to Chapter 31 of the Texas 
Election Code, and Chapter 791 of the Texas Government  Code (the Joint Election Agreement and 
Contract for Election Services, hereafter called the “Election Agreement”), and such election 
agreement provides for political subdivisions subject to the election agreement that hold elections 
on the same day in all or part of the same territory to hold a joint election as authorized in 
Chapter 271 of the Texas Election Code;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1.  General Election Ordered.  The General Election of the City shall be held on 
Saturday, May 4, 2019, to elect members to City District A, City Council District D, and At Large 
Position 2; for a term of three (3) years.  
 
Section 2.  Filing Period.  Candidates at the election for the above offices shall file their 
application to become candidates with the City Secretary of the City at City Hall, 216 W. Sealy, 
Alvin, Texas 77511, beginning January 16, 2019 and continuing through February 15, 2019.  
Candidates shall file their applications with the City Secretary on any weekday that is not a City 
holiday, between 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m., Monday through Thursday, with the exception of 8:00 
a.m. - 5:00 p.m. on Friday, February 15, 2019.  All applications for candidacy shall be on a form as 
prescribed by the Texas Election Code.  
 
Section 3.  Drawing.  The order in which the names of the candidates for each office are to be 
printed on the ballot shall be determined by a drawing conducted by the City Secretary as provided 
by the Texas Election Code.  Such drawing will be held in the Office of the City Secretary at City 
Hall on Monday, February 25, 2019 at 5:31 p.m., for the general election. 
 
Section 4.  Notice of Election.  Notice of the election shall be given and the election shall be 
held in compliance with the provisions of the Texas Election Code, the Federal Voting Rights 
Act of 1965, as amended, and the City Charter in all respects.  Notice of the election shall be 
made by publishing the Notice of Election, in both English and Spanish, at least one time, not 
earlier than thirty (30) days nor later than ten (10) days prior to said election, in a newspaper of 



Res19-R-05                  Page 2 of 3 

general circulation published within the City; and by posting of the notice on the bulletin board 
used for posting notices of meetings of City Council at City Hall not later than the twenty-first 
(21st) day before the election, written in both English and Spanish. 
 
Section 5.  Ballots.  The ballots for the election shall comply with the Texas Election Code and be 
in the form provided by the City to the Brazoria County Election Officer for use on the voting 
devices and ballots used by Brazoria County. 
 
Section 6.  Election Procedures.  The Brazoria County Election Officer and his/her employees 
and appointees, and the election judges, alternate judges and clerks properly appointed for the 
election, shall hold and conduct the election in the manner provided by the Election Agreement and 
the law governing the holding of general elections by home rule cities of the State of Texas; and the 
official ballots, together with such other election materials as are required by the Texas Election 
Code, shall be prepared in both the English and Spanish languages and shall contain such 
provisions, markings and language as is required by law. 
 
Section 7.  Early Voting.  Early voting, both by personal appearance and by mail, will be 
conducted by the Brazoria County Election Officer, who is designated and appointed as the Early 
Voting Clerk, in accordance with the Texas Election Code.  Early voting by personal appearance 
shall be conducted at places and locations authorized by state law and the Brazoria County Election 
Officer as described in “Attachment B.”  Early voting shall commence on Monday, April 22, 2019, 
and continue through Tuesday, April 30, 2019, and early voting polls shall remain open for the time 
specified by the Texas Election Code.  Early voting shall also be held at any time and location 
authorized by the Brazoria County Election Officer.  Early voting by City residents may be 
conducted at any Brazoria County early voting location and any location exclusively designated by 
the Brazoria County Election Officer.  
   
Section 8.  Election Precincts and Polling Places.  The election precincts for the election shall be 
the election precincts established by Brazoria County, provided that each shall contain and include 
geographic area that is within the City.  The polling place for each such election precinct shall be 
the polling place established by Brazoria County for such election precincts in Brazoria County and 
voting by residents of the City.  Voting by City residents may be conducted at any Brazoria County 
voting location and any location exclusively designated by the Brazoria County Election Officer for 
City residents.  The polls, found in “Attachment B”, shall remain open on the day of the election 
from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. The returns for precincts in Brazoria County will be provided by 
precinct and the Brazoria County Election Officer shall tabulate and provide the election returns for 
the election.  
 
Section 9.  Joint Election.  The City agrees to conduct a joint election with other political 
subdivisions within Brazoria County, provided that such political subdivision holds an election on 
May 4, 2019 in all or part of the same territory as the City (the “Political Subdivisions”).  The joint 
election shall be conducted in accordance with state law, this Resolution, and the 2019 Joint 
Election Agreement and Contract for Election Services with Brazoria County to be approved by the 
City Council. 
 
Section 10. Duties of City Secretary and Election Officer. The City Secretary, or designee, is 
instructed to aide the Brazoria County Election Officer in the acquisition and furnishing of all 
election supplies and materials necessary to conduct the election as provided by the Election 



Res19-R-05                  Page 3 of 3 

Agreement.  The City Secretary is further authorized to give or cause to be given notices required 
for the election, and to take such other and further action as is required to conduct the election in 
compliance with the Texas Election Code; provided that, pursuant to the Election Agreement 
between Brazoria County and the City, the Brazoria County Election Officer shall have the duty and 
be responsible for organizing and conducting the election in compliance with the Texas Election 
Code; and for providing all services specified to be provided in the Election Agreement.  The 
Brazoria County Election Officer shall give the notices required by the Texas Election Code to be 
given for the election not required to be given by the City under the Election Agreement. 
 
Section 11.  Election Judges.  The presiding judges, alternate presiding judges and clerks for the 
election shall be selected and appointed by Brazoria County and its appointees in compliance with 
the requirements of state law, and such judges and clerks so selected by Brazoria County and its 
appointees are hereby designated and appointed by the City Council as the election officers, judges 
and clerks, respectively, for the holding of said general election.  The presiding judges, alternate 
presiding judges and clerks shall perform the functions and duties of their respective positions that 
are provided by state law.  The City Council will further confirm and appoint the election judges 
and alternate election judges that are appointed by Brazoria County for the election.  
  
Section 12.  Official Newspaper.  It is hereby found and determined that The Alvin Sun is a 
newspaper published within the City of Alvin, Texas; is a newspaper of general circulation 
within the City; and is the official newspaper of the City of Alvin.  The City Secretary is hereby 
authorized and directed to cause notice to be given as directed in above in Section 4.  Further 
orders are reserved until the returns of the election are made by the duly authorized election 
officials and received by this body. 
 
Section 13.  General.  The election shall be held and conducted by the Brazoria County Election 
Officer in compliance with the Texas Election Code and the Election Agreement.   
 
Section 14.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its passage 
on the date shown below. 
 
Section 15.  Open Meetings Act.  It is hereby officially found and determined that this meeting 
was open to the public, and public notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given, 
all as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 
 
AND, IT IS SO RESOLVED. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 7th day of February 2019. 
 
 
CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS    ATTEST: 
 

            
By: _____________________________  By: __________________________ 
        Paul A. Horn, Mayor           Dixie Roberts, City Secretary  







 

 

Adjunto C 

Por la presente se ordena que se llevará a cabo una elelcción el el sábado 4 de mayo de 2019 para 
considerar las Posiciones del Concejo Municipal del Distrito A, Distrito D y de la posición 2 
general. 

vea el adjunto B para los lugares de votación anticipada y tiempos. 
 

Las solicitudes para boletas que se votaran en ausencia por correo deberan enviarse a: 
Joyce Hudman, County Clerk 

111 E. Locust, Ste 200 
Angleton, Texas 77515-4654 

o enviado por correo electronico a CCClerkElections@brazoria-county.om 
 
Las solicitudes par boletas de votacion adelantada por correo deberan recibirse para el fin de las 
horas de negocio el 23 de abril de 2019. 
 



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   2/7/2019 

Department:  Engineering Contact:  Michelle Segovia, City Engineer  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider a final plat of Zuniga Place (located at 4566 County Road 181), being a 

subdivision of 7.9961 acres in the A.C.H. & B. Survey, Section 26, A-471, Brazoria 
County, Texas. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☒Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   On December 27, 2018, the Engineering Department received the final Plat of Zuniga Place for 
review. The property is located at 4566 County Road 181 in the City of Alvin’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction 
(ETJ) and is being platted for conveyance of lot 2. This plat complies with all requirements of the City’s 
Subdivision Ordinance. 
 
The City Planning Commission unanimously approved the plat at their meeting on January 15, 2019. 
 
Staff recommends approval. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount: 
 

1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☐ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☒ Required ☐    Date Completed: 1/30/2019 SLH 
 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Final Plat of Zuniga Place 
 

 
Recommendation:   Move to approve the final plat of Zuniga Place (located at 4566 County Road 181), 

being a subdivision of 7.9961 acres in the A.C.H. & B. Survey, Section 26, A-471, 
Brazoria County, Texas. 

 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 





 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   2/7/2019 

Department:  Engineering Contact:  Michelle Segovia, City Engineer  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider the Master Preliminary Plat of Mustang Ridge (located along Mustang Road, 

across from Alvin Community College), being a planned unit development of 35.35 acres 
of land located in the H.T.& B.R.R. Company Survey, A-225, City of Alvin, Brazoria 
County, Texas. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☒Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   On December 27, 2018, the Engineering Department received the master preliminary plat of 
Mustang Ridge for review. The property is located along Mustang Road across from Alvin Community 
College and next to Melbourne Senior Apartments. This master preliminary plat consists of 164 single-family 
residential lots, 12 reserves, and 3 blocks, and complies with the City of Alvin’s Planned Unit Development 
section of the Subdivision Ordinance. 
 
The City Planning Commission considered the plat at their meeting on January 15, 2019. Commission Member 
Vela recommended approval of the plat which was seconded by Commission Member Buckelew, the plat was 
approved 8 votes to 2 votes. Commission Members Kelinske and Buckelew voted to deny the plat. In 
discussion Commission Member Kelinske indicated that the green space provided is primarily small tracts of 
left-over land that the Developer cannot use and not a true useable amenity for the subdivision. Commission 
Member Buckelew did not give a reason for his “no” vote. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the plat as revised. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount: 
 

1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☒ Required ☐    Date Completed: 1/30/2019 SLH 
 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Master Preliminary Plat of Mustang Ridge 
 

Recommendation:   Move to approve the Master Preliminary Plat of Mustang Ridge (located along 
Mustang Road, across from Alvin Community College), being a planned unit 
development of 35.35 acres of land located in the H.T.& B.R.R. Company Survey, 
A-225, City of Alvin, Brazoria County, Texas. 

 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 





 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   2/7/2019 

Department:  City Attorney Contact:  Suzanne L. Hanneman, City Attorney  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider Ordinance 19-C, annexing 23.004 acres of land, more or less, into the corporate 

limits of the City, for Forest Heights Section 7; approving a service plan for the annexed 
area; making findings of fact; providing a severability clause; and providing an effective 
date. 
 

Type of Item: ☒Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   On November 1, 2018, Lando Development Ltd., petitioned the City to annex approximately 
23.004 acres for the purpose of constructing Forest Heights, Section 7.  Council authorized the commencement 
of annexation procedures on November 15, 2018, in Resolution 18-R-40. 
 
Public hearings were held on January 3, 2019 and January 17, 2019.  This ordinance, upon passage of the 
second reading, will finalize the annexation of approximately 23.004 acres of land for Forest Heights, Section 
7, located along the proposed FM 528 extension between Business 35 and State Highway 6 in Brazoria 
County, Texas.  The Ordinance includes the Municipal Service Plan. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 19-C. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount: 
 

1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☐    Date Completed: 1/30/2019 SLH 
 
 

Supporting documents attached: 

• Ordinance 19-C with attachments 
 

 
Recommendation:   Move to approve Ordinance 19-C, annexing 23.004 acres of land, more or less, into 

the corporate limits of the City, for Forest Heights Section 7; approving a service 
plan for the annexed area; making findings of fact; providing a severability clause; 
and providing an effective date. 

 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 19-C 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF AL VIN, TEXAS, ANNEXING 23.004 
ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, INTO THE CORPORA TE LIMITS 
OF THE CITY, FOR FOREST HEIGHTS, SECTION 7, LOCATED 
ALONG THE PROPOSED FM 528 EXTENSION BETWEEN BUSINESS 
35 AND STATE HIGHWAY 6; APPROVING A SERVICE PLAN FOR 
THE ANNEXED AREA; MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DA TE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Alvin, Texas, (the "City") is a home-rule municipality 
authorized by State law and Charter to annex territory lying adjacent and contiguous to the City; 

WHEREAS, on November 1, 2018, the City received a request and petition for 
annexation from the owner of the property, as hereinafter described, in compliance with the 
Texas Local Government Code and Section 5 of Article I of the City Charter; 

WHEREAS, the territory, as hereinafter described, is adjacent to the present City limits; 

WHEREAS, the City Council authorized the commencement of annexation procedures 
with respect to the subject property described in Exhibit A on November 15, 2018, in Resolution 
18-R-40; 

WHEREAS, the two (2) separate public hearings, publications and notices were 
provided prior to consideration of this Ordinance, in accordance with the Texas Local 
Government Code; 

WHEREAS, the City intends to provide services to the property to be annexed according 
to the Service Plan attached hereto as Exhibit "B;" 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF AL VIN, TEXAS: 

Section 1. That all the above premises and findings of fact are found to be true and correct and 
are incorporated into the body of this ordinance as if copied in their entirety. 

Section 2. That the following described property not previously annexed by the City, 
(hereinafter referred to as the "Annexed Property"), is hereby annexed into the corporate limits 
of the City of Alvin: 

A tract of 23 .004 acres of land, being situated in Lots 63 and 62 of The Hooper and 
Wade Survey, Section 23, Abstract 420, and out of Lots 8, 9, and 10 of Pierce's 
Addition of the Hooper and Wade Survey, Section 24, Abstract 485, Brazoria 
County, Texas, and being more particularly shown and described in the Exhibit "A," 
attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes. 

Section 3. That the Service Plan submitted herewith is hereby approved as part of this 
Ordinance, made a part hereof and attached hereto as Exhibit "B." 



Section 4. That the future owners and inhabitants of the Annexed Property shall be entitled to all 
of the rights and privileges of the City as set forth in the Service Plan attached hereto as Exhibit 
"B," and are further bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in full force and 
effect and all those which may be hereafter adopted. 

Section 5. That the official map and boundaries of the City, heretofore adopted and amended be 
and hereby are amended so as to include the Annexed Property as part of the City of Alvin. 

Section 6. That the Annexed Property shall be assigned to Council District A. 

Section 7. That if any provision of this Ordinance or the application of any provision to any 
person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 
applications of the Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 

Section 8. That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
publication in accordance with the provisions of the Texas Local Government Code. 

Section 9. That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the 
Texas Government Code. 

PASSED and APPROVED on the __ day of February 2019. 

THE CITY OF AL VIN, TEXAS ATTEST 

By: ______ _ _ ______ _ 
Paul A. Hom, Mayor Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 

2 



EXHIBIT "A" 

Petition for Annexation with 

Description of Property 



STATE OF TEXAS § 
§ 

COUNTY OF BRAZORIA § 

REQUEST & PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF AL VIN 
FOR ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY 

WHEREAS, the undersigned is the owner of a certain tract of property located within 
Brazoria County, Texas, such property more particularly described hereinafter by true and correct 
legal description (referred to herein as the "subject property"); 

WHEREAS, the undersigned has sought the annexation of the subject property by the City 
of Alvin, Texas (hereinafter sometimes referred to as "City"), in order to obtain the benefits of City 
services to the subject property by the City; 

WHEREAS, the subject property is contiguous and adjacent to the corporate limits of the 
City; 

WHEREAS, the City, pursuant to §43.021 of the Texas Local Government Code and the 
request of the property owner, is authorized to annex the subject property; and 

WHEREAS, the undersigned agrees and consents to the annexation of the subject property 
by the City and fiuther agrees to be bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in 
force and effect within the corporate limits of the City and all those which may be hereafter adopted. 

NOW THEREFORE, the undersigned by this Petition and Request: 

SECTION ONE: Requests the City Council of the City to commence annexation 
proceedings and to annex into the corporate limits of the City of Alvin, Texas, of all portions of the 
subject property not previously annexed into the City and further described as follows: 

A tract of 23 .004 acres of land, being situated in Lots 63 and 62 of The Hooper and 
Wade Survey, Section 23, Abstract 420, and out of Lots 8, 9, and 10 of Pierce's 
Addition of the Hooper and Wade Survey, Section 24, Abstract 485, Brazoria 
County, Texas, and being more particularly shown and described in the Exhibit "A" 
attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes. 

SECTION TWO: Requests that after annexation the City provide such services as are 
legally permissible and provided by the City, including sanitation, water, and general governmental 
services as set forth in the municipal services plan. 

SECTION THREE: Acknowledges and represents having received, read and understood 
the attached "draft" Service Plan, attached hereto as Exhibit "B" (proposed to be applicable to and 
adopted for the subject property), and that such "draft" Service Plan is wholly adequate and 
acceptable to the undersigned who hereby requests the City Council to proceed with the annexation 
and preparation of a final Municipal Service Plan, publish notice, and hold the requisite public 



hearings thereon, in accordance with the applicable laws of the State of Texas. 

SECTION FOUR: Acknowledges that the oodersigned understands and agrees that all city 
services to the subject property will be provided by the City on the same terms and conditions as 
provided to other similarly situated areas of the City and as provided in the Municipal Service Plan. 

SECTION FIVE: Agrees that a copy of this Request and Petition may be filed of record in 
the offices of the City of Alvin and in the real property records of Brazoria Coooty, Texas, and shall 
be notice to and binding upon all persons or entities now or hereafter having any interest in the 
subject property. 

sl ] 
FILED this -~ day of /\J ~~ 2018, with the City Secretary of the City of 

Alvin, Brazoria Coooty, Texas. ~ ' 

Petitioner: 

ST ATE OF TEXAS § 
§ 

COUNTY OF BRAZORIA § 

BEFORE ME, the undersig , a Notary Public in and for said County and State, on this 
day personally appeared U of Lando Development Ltd., 
Owner of the subject property and Petitio e herein, known to me to be the person whose name is 
subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they had authority to bind the entity 
and that they executed the same for the purposes therein expressed and in the capacity therein 
stated. 

GIVENUNDERMYHANDANDSEALOFOFFICEontbis/~dayo~20!8. 

(SEAL) ->.~--+--'------------
Notary Public - State of Texas 



Exhibit "A" 

DESCRIPTION OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY 

A tract of 23.004 acres of land, being situated in Lots 63 and 62 of The Hooper and Wade Survey, 
Section 23, Abstract 420, and out of Lots 8, 9, and 10 of Pierce's Addition of the Hooper and Wade 
Survey, Section 24, Abstract 485, Brazoria County, Texas, and being more :fully described in the 
attached. 



t'L t,,.,,u --"'· LrD, • ~ ..... Lt"l\tO<I Ptin....m,,. IO<t1'lg ~r '""" •~""'fll! ,,...,. 1\t'n'. r---·•""""- of 
'"'""" ........ ~. UJ:.. k-l"ll ""',......., p<r'f .... •I""""" DftcWl""WN. LTD.'" r ...... Lfoul"" 1'\lrt>•••'3"'" __.,, 
"""'4.,.~ "~ r. .., __,..,,•I IM lJOOl ..,.... of lcaM ,,_,,,..., Ill 1111 ......... """' ~'°"' ""'Po/ l'ORl:l.7 H!l/CHrS 

: ... ~ :::;::: ::": ~~~ :! ::'aG':£"lers-;"'dr%_:'1'i",. 1:Z'H.:,:";1~~~::..,"""'Ab:::C.~ :;"" 
"""""" C.-v. ~SU. •"' ~-'- '" ,UWk ...... ...,..... - .,_. ~ ,..-u'""" --· -.. ... - .. ,......... 
eftol ""'......,., _l.., •"l' a....,.. JI>' •-1ou -...--i t, llrw ulcbl...-..i •I ,....S.-•.., o,_.....i I>' - --· O'l4 -w:i 
""4...,..il ~ - a, uw alf\...-li.-t. of dw ,,..,,,_ • .• •I ''"P ,...._•I--·~ ..u."" to....,,,,...,.!•,....\~·· """ 
""'-V hnol _..1.,..._ ....,. n.cu.-'3 •nd ""''°" lo _.......: """' ~ """"r> "'"' 111/o o/ /110 lan<r ,. .,..,_.,I 1'w<.hn 
_., iw ... <tHIW.ol"" •"4 b' UW.. ,_,.~ <£o .Mdl«llo h> "'"' pwOl1< Jw put.he wu.i11 .... J1-wr --~1..il ........i 
--· l'lls........, •""""'- •lrooLI od<M ~II.,, 44dt1......i I-/"( (l'-trl /w'""11 •rlll .U ,.- __.,,,,. 
,,...,, '"JW- 1-'1111 /"I (:11'/ o&Hw v""""" ln.ol .,,_. ... l«ol- <SdPA"'I lo m.,.,: °"'""''°4 ,.i.c ~IC ><1Wll11 ,.._,_..,, 
1"-1.,.........,...,, ...,II.-""'__.,,,, fC:t ..... .1.LJ.., •""-""' o..!11 ·~..- ....,_., 

r rr'f.s.r "'V ""'"""' C1111 ~1 ...i ...... ,,,,.._ O--v. r._. lllu .Jo. ~ •I ,Jut..y 

La""°~",...."" tTD . .4f--=rMlf'f..,"'11tp 
Jl)J 14- lilo.__., UC 

c........i ""'"...... ./ 

·-·r..;;;-r~ ~ ...... ~ 

111tSf'.1.r£01 rtu.: 

m.·•TT OT 'JlAZOlflA 

'UfJU flt. t1v ~'""'"""""> .... !Au ""11 ,..._...u, <1l'J""l...C An .. r ,.,.-, ,,.. ....... w...i.. ~ u Uw 
~"9 ..... ._..i. •""""~to,..... Ul<>l"" .-- f"" 'f'."" ,..,., .. ~--..--~ .... , p.tA. 

C/rt.¥ UllDt/I. lfT Jr~VD AHD St.I}. OT Off/CL u.u L~ .... , •f';-.1--i~ llf)/IJ 

~71' . rJ 
_j-r-:-__ . - ~ 
~Aot1,..,,.u>d,..,..,,,,.._"""""- ruu ~ 

I, 1orr:r WD llAH ant •/ u.. Cwunly o/ -·- a.....ty. "" ... _, url•h 11141 !Au pl4J ..... ~ u.. <WTl•J'k:Gl• •/ 
•••11,.,.aosl...., '-'U Ji""}'" "i"'°"'""' •n "'Y o/fo<'e "" __ Zfl,,_ "' _ o'""".t. •-.! auly ............, ..., 
- .471/J,<IC ."doct,•nVo(.,.... ~~ .o/tlV-p~o/_1..,.,c...nty}fT•od-.Nl/ 

JOrr:r iiiiOW.IJf -· 
Onto/U..c.-.t11a.-A 
,,....,._ OooNy. r ...... 

arr OT "1.'V AFP/l/0'1~ 

~L 
'fil;;;J IL'~~'~" 

'""'Tvu ( ]~ ~ 
NY-1tJ1J•Nn. ftl)I(;- ctri RX 

~-""' e..u--a...,.,)j.,......• 

17~-.lO<~:l'\-....., ..... 3 ""'"1-0Z..-•lf7'1><1; ___ ~ 
--·-..:Ill~. ;u:ro. l.l, _, •;iQ.-"tl'M~. 1f~..:t:OIO!'!C 
..... ....i .. ~ .. '°"""''"·""'ll:•".17'1C...,JI ... .-,.,~ 
,_-.,'o.o.:.- .. 'M.Ol.'<Slcrll.1<fCl'O~"><r-r>·~-"O 
..... 'no:! ... ~ .. - ... _'·" "<ocn>•~"' --:our.-. UM. <,MJH.(00 ..,.)llOC .... :- .... , -'llO<:'l(:;Ofw\"C) .... t:O 
,.,D~ ''· :'O'' ,_XO...::._·- <ICIX..- '.'l'><\__.,,_i...t 1'0 ,_::if'oll._,.., .>:>"'<UUOCD"~-~·u "° 70>'"1~;;, 
"'lDlm~, ,.,.~~.JO.c _,uoo~tr-.o:>.i7?C> 
~•..OC ........... ";1.C"1;J>U.CllWCl'<:D-..c:roo~·~
--=--~ 'tM>-~-_.,;;a-·:ir-=-::i.,,, ... "n __ • -::-::-.r--=.1"-.c: K"·•Ol~_,,,<tt!Oo_ .. ;_,,,, -a. 

~~~°'~~~~':""'~·:.;:.:;;:.. .. ~ 
rulllnl'l,f-C lQ.:ie<l~UJ !'(-~"'_,_~.!OM.._.,.. 
'><l<O;'#!l<~•l7 • ~n'·'~"""'~"':itm . ..._'nlw.ooolCI. 
D•o '11--~ ...C.OS~Ol~~T•CU""1'.•U: 
«:> io•cr·-"1"C:itlll"lo;oQ:l~iN<.M"'.-ru.l.---~ •..::eo:..:_,. .. ,, ""<:.e~ ··""°""''•f111'-0ll: ___ ..._ 
~~tf"C.._JOo~D._' 

"8Q. XA."" •J ~,,,~..__'>¥.afUCJ< -~-" _, • ·ot•o.o 
_,•OS"Jfo;lOI rt."'U"' llll•"••l<CW -- _. • .J-Go"•-'00"" 
---~17~'00!"( ... ,,,-~...,.,~~ 
~ ..... .._a.x:i .. -..,,..::::u.T!~ '1,t'IO :o·~"'-""' 
"""'°""'~:o,.o,-.~ ...... 
-t~'><l~ on:1:..._,.~~._....,1<.o_...-..i;"VJ 
"-..c:TrlP"S1fr'Oo21.'><"La.c<A.Lll; 

_..., ,..,. ~001•D11•~.-:i" i=co:•rr~·'•""'-"X
... '*-'llO~ 
~·¥:>1''9'"Ul_•_-""Q.ll'l":.O'Tr"\l•)IOIO(:• .... oa>..,.· 
>Go"-·f>l=-r-IO.l">I,., W :trotS-" ·DI •J5".-'l: ll m:r.'Tr~• >!• JOo..,. _ ..... 

-"'""--~ _.,.,JOJ',.,-.,l"'ll;I04;11)"""°;» '·l'·lr'"0•)•1..C..IO'Oll:I..,._ 
UtGo>l'CUClrm.~ 
_.... •r ..- """ ... ~,,,., .«OMC<,:. "•a:.•u: -o• ''"~ - _..,,. 
.... .:N-•Oll~'< 

~UIC""~~Y-..-O....!I0...-0.....:f_,~~ 
xi;,_,cc:oa> .. l"'(...,,...,_CI.,,.,, IU"°~T:)>l"C 
-~"-=--'°-""'.'\JM.TK~;>.J. 

"°""•l"ll'~:JO-•ts°10G,, 1--"'"T'l'~•>.1-- '°' .... 
_..,,...~J\'O(!llFT;>l•"""'°""' .. 'll.-"'''.'""0-----· 
,,.<A~'l;ll~ 
11C>...,. •r•1',_0Ul"='"•~...aao ... _..-u· .,,.,:111C<-.Q..,. 
.... C>l'll,_.-ot; 

l!1~1~i}! 
~~;~~~~:.~~~?.~?.?.~~~; 
"<hell<ll"< .. ~ .RW'f<t»•,...~ 7 ~X>'lr'Ol•~- ... 'tXl 
- .... ~t!"I~~"' 

"OCC_.• V If WW" •'311 •~ 7 • .,..,..'ti"' "O •Vt'°'..,.. --:r; -.... "" .. 1--
~7'.""lt·sm·'di.o::...,.,.l'c."""""""ICllJ'lt.~-CJ

·-~ ~"'"'°'. rQO. •·lll5"'....0CJ 12.u· •"a" 'tr•,,..--=--- .... 
"4...:ls;;ll'>o•:t ':IK~'.U..:.C-.C~...-Y-..C<tl'Df~'ll.eo< 
< <Qll.•;)S"...0:7'11C.·11UT'O•>/l"°'_a:..,_ .... ~,,..,,,.~ 

~'Cl'IOl"J<'•fJI'~ .... %""'Cl<l6 - 'n'I .,,, ,,,,..,. __ 
-_j,>~:s1 .... """"t.O: 

...,1Cl_,....,.,,.;.,,~,.- ... X>.-O.sl..M7'iOC'OOl':"'>C'Q"1C"'Oo 
• ·oe•~111·~r:nr:<>"""\.4'7•-...c:"w~~ 
""""'.l'C"'"'-·- - :>('lle.o.i$.UODoW'llf$0:.',3ill.:IO-'T!l ·-
1'11<t'6U«Jf1hlll<al/.SClll""""-•l'""""'""'"''*""'o/U..SIG!o"/ 
Tniu. u ....... ,,. ~·Jv 11 .... plat -uv " """'...,. 0 -.. .. , ....... ~"""""""'"'P"" ............. JllO~· .. _.....,,.. ......... 
IN Ul}n'ma.llO" ~to - ~-><II «n""Clly ~· IN /<Id• }fom4 
:!....~ :.,... •!I.Jiu nn~ n... •" ... ~_..,, neopi u tlio• 

,...,.._,.,.il,.,.'(;,/!Au..iJN<My~/~ 

~.;-~"""'"=' ~ ''" 

~;:~,_., ,.:~ .. ~~ ·~:.....~~ 1"',,.".:-':,.~r;"_:_, ___ _ - --- --· --- -- -- --- -----· 

ztr~u: c... 

~(S(~ :':>.~!' -r .. ~..£"'•-·.:« .. 'C "1.Cl>W-~C ... ~ ... :; I ~'!"" 

• ;i:1J.....a ~.lit .. ~ w.' ec •JS1r rr ""' ~,_..- llOC" -i:"I . ... <\.""'O';f~ 
Y ::f'to.hA>;( ~-- ~;YO!'!) ~()OM CQ~~ CO'<"........,_A~IQO> ""'° l!lCl.MUo"\"I 
~·ioc·>te l(et:;i: P:~~"l.''-.O!Vf't:: 

2 . .\LJ..~ 1~w .. r; ·~•'II-"'~ kit. o(tl>'! .:1LNI 17' •tJ<Ct:\. 
~ <tvc:.•l'OfS. ,,,....~i..cs 1H:1 OPtnt C8S'l"IJl';''('W, c,~ 11< 'Jl"rll.<'le1'o ~ 
1i1AJ1lf........:t0'~'"°'1"'L<;.L~S....i.9t'"~...,,:>•T .. 1<""f 
OCTE>;TJ;;OI. POOC.• loc.A"'ftl ... ~ -.~ ~ 

l.-.~;,OC""t'o"'1:)<.t>U,lff-,;jo\O,_,!!l:!}<(:.a.t~ ........ 
~~'Jl"l<f~ e.::~: J,5'\0._.~.....,.11~..U{)l<rf~ 

'Q.;T't:. JIO"<I.;, j,lo(J COHS'111'~Ctt:l Ir!' !1CC.R! -J <H s..&~ f...::UTO 
~~to> 'S" X\(l:>Pf~.SJ tt~.....,... ~ >'-.:. llCI."1 -PN<Sl'tll!I~~ 10 
1.CCfL}#)...,...l'HU'!.,i>OlltlY."1.il~:~::>f!Sli-\u,llt.'11'~:itl.Y t~ 
'l< """lr{""1<1Cf or'ICl.f"CS ~ -r ~ . .ro..m t: .t~l ,, 'P.~1 
.::o.'f .... "f!; Oii lllCJ!':T• •c -."fl.-. ... :0'14.11 roe:.··~~ 

•"l"'-SCCO'~,._., ":;7'"f't1'0'i'IO. ·S""""'-llt. 
>f'l~~•<;Q'.Q!:C 

,d.~'tl:l.ICIPP'IC'...._;;l...._ ..... ~"IJ.l,"S""''"""-"' ... 
~:Jl..-"'<ll; Xlf~ IC' 4ll:C" '>< ~ 'tO'"'S y '-«O ;>M':(S n-1 .... lJP('I 
~ !!f li'l'~"a.! I~ :lB""""-~ >#IC ....,.,--.:; /!I("~ .r.t;,_ uel~~--S. Tr 
~ l#;J/(;!O Mf" Cl•ln ~-17-.... > .0C0CSS '.'<1'1:) POl!'lY ~f '~':'l°~ 
"50:::'1'1'!:111P'J.'tt?'f""'<rH.~~~....::-11.rv.:.1>,u 

1~.C.Cll~.f!.IM.~·. Sl""'-Ll>lo><tr"ol'<let<' 'ODo'"'ll.;F>()t<'Mf•'!!OPPr'I 
<1:11""Gtt"Ol<,..1¥",11o<;utH";~JCr,.)"l::io1~ ...... iE--"'·~ 

"61.1!( ... ti: ~ •-.,,~If~ · -~1'""C ""'OP[;>..Y 

a..u..i ....... ...,,. •• b).,,.,,_C.--l'CMu.n.ol""'"""'~-Duln<J.V.J 
'"<mttrtoof!'HIU>o•.........._ino,,.ft!Ud""'illo1"11"b.....,...,""'""4•11U..~ 
8/ IN ""'"9n .-..,. ~\.........., 111u \t co.,..,.. ,~ fMI Sr4=on<1 c.o.uitv ...._ .... ,...,.. 
01·rw..1~$s.c<..,.,,ro.ow-,...,_,, 

bon4"'4 111u _ 2.. 'f M• •I 

~~ 

qji~" 
h . 

..... ..::.~ 
DAl'l EL SCOTI E'.'. G I \"EER l~G . u.r 

rt~?::~~::~=~ 
,... :ze1l$'3-S~(E'CT 'CJ~ 
• ......_ 'S-CC-00•"'<'..~~'IQl<;L,._~ .. ,._<::CM 

\'.'. 

.,______..,., 7 ar ..J»O 

Sco;o ~ .. - •oo· 

FINAL PLAT OF 
FOREST HEIGHTS SECTION SEVEN 

A DEVELOPMENT OF 23.004 ACR£S 
{BC.CF NO 2017062465). 

SE!NG SITUATED IN LOTS 63 & 62 
OF THE HOOPER & WADE SURVEY SEC 23 A-420 

ANO OUT OF LOT 8. 9 & 10 OF 
PIERCE'S ADDITION OF THE 

HOOPER & WAD€ SURVEY SEC 24 A4a5 
BRAZORIA COUNTY TEXAS 

J :ii :""t><"' ~e .c ;. ·a ~£~«·.~s 
·"" 1~. ;:o-a JCS '<C [;s~~~--~1.::m:< 

OW'!£~ 

l...\ , 00 OE\'E.LOPME;o.;T. LTD . 
• <::XA5 .JWlrt:l .... ~™E'l:SM" 
~ .... '0.."l'O.W./'£'11' ::>'! t ·~ 

·::VS-.:.. "!U.S T7C~1 "'"O'o£ ' ~! •r 9•"2 

::i..R'.i!VQq 

WA Surveying, Inc. JA 
·~38E"MU!rte P"le!le 26' i301J'"~1 
Oeer?n ·nn 
~ T!?Ui'"MNe~019".:91' 

------ ~~t- ~F~ 



, .... ::·:: .... 

_:_e. 1-++H-+H-! 

I I .1::: 
~+-t--+-+-t--+-+-<-1 

" I' . 

I> ii: 
-. -+-• 

.. 
; ( 

I 

I 

1·. 
~ - ' I : 

' '·.'. 

:: ?, r ~ . 
. ·~ · ... , 

;; 
' .. .. ,, .. 
•' 
~: 

' ~; 
l\ 
'~ 
'.f 

-

• 
! . ~ 
fr 

" '-,· 
-· s: 

-·~-----

' I· ~ 
'!''; I . J' ~ ' f 

' ' 
' ': $ 

: ,. 

1111-1111 

~:·.·-

~ .... 
' 
~·· 

. ,, .. 



Proposed Forest Heights Sec. 7 Annexation 
Rev. Date 10/4/2018 

Engineering Dept. 



Exhibit "B" 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF ALVIN 

WHEREAS, the City of Alvin, Texas (the "City") intends to institute annexation 
proceedings for a tract of land described more fully hereinafter (referred to herein as the "subject 
property"); 

WHEREAS, Section 43.056 of the Texas Local Government Code, requires a service plan 
be adopted with the annexation ordinance; 

WHEREAS, the subject property is not included in the municipal annexation plan and is 
exempt from the requirements thereof; 

WHEREAS, infrastructure provided for herein and that existing are sufficient to service the 
subject property on the same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties cunently 
within the City limits, and no capital improvements are required to offer municipal services on the 
same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties within the City; and 

WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is 
authorized by Chapter 43 of the Texas Local Government Code to annex the subject property into 
the City; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the following services will be provided for the subject property on 
the effective date of annexation: 

(1) General Municipal Services. Pursuant to the requests of the owner and this Plan, the 
following services shall be provided immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 

A. Police protection as follows: 

Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police 
services now being offered to the citizens of the City. 

B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 

Fire protection by agreement between the City and the ESD present personnel and 
equipment of the ESD fire fighting force and the volunteer fire fighting force with the 
limitations of water available. Radio response for Emergency Medical Services with the 
present contract personnel and equipment of the ESD and the volunteer fire department. 

C. Solid waste collection services as follows: 

Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City. 



D. Animal control as follows: 

Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 
provided within the City. 

E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 

F. Inspection services in conjlll1ction with building permits and routine City code 
enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 

G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 

H. Land use regulation as follows: 

On the effective date of annexation, the regulatory jurisdiction of the City shall be extended 
to include the annexed area, and all property therein shall be subject to the City's police 
power regulations as set forth in state law and duly adopted ordinances. 

(2) Scheduled Municipal Services. Due to the size and vacancy of the subject property, the 
plans and schedule for the development of the subject property, the following mw1icipal services 
will be provided on a schedule and at increasing levels of service as provided in this Plan: 

A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 

(i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 

(ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of water 
service, water service will be provided to the subject property, or applicable po1tions 
thereof, by the utility holding a water certificate of convenience and necessity (''CCN") for 
the subject property, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the utility 
in whose jurisdiction the subject property, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in 
accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time 
to time for the extension of water service. Jf connected to the City's water utility system, the 
subject property's owner shall construct the internal water lines and pay the costs of line 
extension and construction of such facilities necessary to provide water service to the subject 
property as required in City ordinances. Upon acceptance of the water lines within the 
subject property and any off-site improvements, water service will be provided by the City 
utility depru1ment on the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all 
similarly situated areas and customers of the City, subject to all the ordinances, regulations 
and policies of the City in effect from time to time. The system wi II be accepted and 
maintained by the City in accordance with its usual acceptance and maintenance policies. 
New water line extensions will be installed and extended upon request under the san1e costs 
and tenns as with other similarly situated customers of the City. The ordinances of the City 
in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the costs and request for 
service. 



B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows : 

(i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 

(ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provlSlon of 
wastewater service, wastewater service will be provided to the subject property, or 
applicable portions thereof: by the utility holding a wastewater CCN for the subject 
property, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in 
whose jurisdiction the subject property, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in 
accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time 
to time for the extension of wastewater service. If connected to the City's wastewater utility 
system, the subject property's owner shall construct the internal wastewater lines and pay 
the costs of line extension and construction of facilities necessary to provide wastewater 
service to the subject property as required in City ordinances. Upon acceptance of the 
wastewater lines within the subject property and any off-site improvements, wastewater 
service will be provided by the City utility department on the same terms, conditions and 
requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and customers of the City, subject 
to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to time. The 
wastewater system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with its usual 
policies. Requests for new wastewater line extensions will be installed and extended upon 
request w1der the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the 
City. The ordinances in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the 
costs and request for service. 

C. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows: 

(i) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the subject 
property and other streets that are hereafter constructed and finally accepted by the City. 
The maintenance of the streets and roads will be limited as foJlows: 

(A) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 
necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and 

(B) Routine maintenance as presently perfonned by the City. 

(ii) The City will maintain existing public streets within the subject property, and 
following installation and acceptance of new roadways by the City as provided by city 
ordinance, including any required traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings, other 
traffic control devices and street lighting, the City will maintain such newly constructed 
public streets, roadways and rights-of-way within the boundaries of the subject property, 
as follows: 

(A) As provided in C(i)(A)&(B) above; 



(B) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage 
facilities, construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the 
need therefore is determined by the governing body under City policies; 

(C) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street 
markings and other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by 
appropriate study and traffic standards; and 

(D) Installation and maintenance of street lighting m accordance with 
established policies of the City. 

(3) Capital Improvements. Construction of the following capital improvements shall be 
initiated after the effective date of the annexation: None. Upon development of the subject 
property or redevelopment, the landowner will be responsible for the development costs the same as 
a developer in a similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect at the time of development or 
redevelopment. No additional capital improvements are necessary at this time to service the subject 
property the same as similarly situated properties. 

(4) Term. Lf not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end often (10) years. 

(5) Property Description. The legal description of the subject property is as set forth in 
exhibits attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service Plan is attached. 



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   2/7/2019 

Department:  Parks and Recreation Contact:  Dan Kelinske, Director  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider a License Agreement for Exclusive Use of City Property between the City of 

Alvin and the Alvin Sunrise Rotary Foundation for the Music Fest and Bar-B-Q Cook-off 
to be held at Briscoe Park from Friday, March 22, 2019 to Sunday, March 24, 2019; and 
authorize the City Manager to sign said agreement. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☒Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   The Alvin Sunrise Rotary Foundation has requested the City issue a license agreement for the 
purpose of holding a fundraising event, Music Fest and Bar-B-Q Cook-Off (March 22 - 24, 2019) in Briscoe 
Park to include food and alcoholic beverages, music and other entertainment. 
 
Alvin Sunrise Rotary Foundation shall: 
• Adhere to governmental regulations concerning the sale of food and alcohol and obtain appropriate permits 
• Adhere to City’s noise ordinance and obtain appropriate sound/noise permit 
• Fence the park area used exclusively for the event 
• Ensure the deployment of police for security and pay the cost of City of Alvin police officers to perform 

security and/or traffic control 
• Maintain the property in clean condition 
• Abide by all terms of the Community Wide Event Application, including insurance requirements 
 
The City shall: 
• Contribute $18,000 of Hotel Occupancy Tax funds thru the H.O.T. fund grant program 
• Authorize Alvin Sunrise Foundation to sell alcoholic beverages on City property 
• Waive tent permit fees for individual participating cookers/cook teams  
• Waive park user fees as outlined in the Community Wide Event Application  
• Provide up to 15 hours of the Alvin Fire Marshal or Assistant Fire Marshal’s time inspection of cookers and 

other Fire Safety and Prevention services required by the City 
• Provide barricades and cones for street closure 
• Provide APD forklift and portable freezer/refrigerator for event purposes at no cost 
• Provide EMS personnel and ambulance 
• Provide Mobile Command Truck 
• Provide portable restroom 
• Provide up to 20 picnic tables and 30 trash barrels with liners 
• Provide electricity and water, where already furnished 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 



 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed:  
 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• License Agreement for Exclusive Use of City Property 

• Community Wide Event Application 

• Res. 14-R-37 Donation Agreement 
 

 
Recommendation:   Move to approve the License Agreement for Exclusive Use of City Property between 

the City of Alvin and the Alvin Sunrise Rotary Foundation for the Music Fest and 
Bar-B-Q Cook-off to be held at Briscoe Par from Friday, March 22, 2019 to Sunday, 
March 24, 2019; and authorize the City Manager to sign said agreement. 

 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 





















RESOLUTION NO. 14-R-37

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, 

TEXAS APPROVING A DONATION AGREEMENT WITH THE ALVIN
SUNRISE ROTARY; WHEREIN THE ALVIN SUNRISE ROTARY WILL

DONATE A TOTAL VALUE OF APPROXIMATELY $ 51, 000 TO THE
CITY PARKS DEPARTMENT AND COUNCIL AUTHORIZES

EXCLUSIVE USAGE RIGHTS TO BRISCOE PARK BY ALVIN SUNRISE

ROTARY FOR ONE WEEK EACH YEAR FOR 7 YEARS FOR THE
ALVIN MUSIC FESTIVAL & BBQ COOK -OFF AND COUNCIL
FURTHER AUTHORIZES NAMING THE PAVILION LOCATED AT

BRISCOE PARK AS THE " ALVIN SUNRISE ROTARY PAVILION" FOR

20 YEARS. 

WHEREAS, Alvin prides itself on community involvement with local organizations, and has
such a relationship with the Alvin Sunrise Rotary Club; and

WHEREAS, the Alvin Sunrise Rotary Club (" Rotary") contacted the City of Alvin and is
requesting the City consider a Donation Agreement that provides for a total contribution of

51, 000 of equipment and/ or cash donations over the course of seven (7) years for improvements

to City parks in exchange for naming rights to the pavilion at Briscoe Park and exclusive usage
of Briscoe Park for certain Rotary events as described more fully in the Donation Agreement
attached hereto as Exhibit "A". 

WHEREAS, the donations to purchase equipment and/or cash donations will help the City
provide additional seating areas and equipment for use by the Parks Department in City parks
improving the quality and enjoyment of City parks; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council, on behalf of the City of Alvin, desire to approve the
Donation Agreement and accept the donations and express their sincere appreciation to the Alvin

Sunrise Rotary Club for their generous contribution and commitment to improve the Parks of the
City of Alvin, NOW THEREFORE, 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS: 

Section 1. That the City Council hereby adopts the recitals and findings set forth in the
preamble hereof. 

Section 2. That the City Council approves the Donation Agreement attached hereto as
Exhibit "A", and authorizes the Mayor to sign the Agreement. 

Section 3. That the City Council, on behalf of the citizens of the City of Alvin, hereby
expresses its appreciation to the Alvin Sunrise Rotary Club, and accepts the generous donations
that will total approximately $ 51, 000 at the end of seven ( 7) years, to provide much needed
money and equipment to furnish the new City of Alvin Parks facilities. 

Res 14R-37 Page 1 of 2



Section 4. That the City Council directs staff to deposit any donated funds received from the
Alvin Sunrise Rotary Club into the donation fund for use in accordance with this resolution and
consistent with the spirit of the donation. 

Section 5. Open Meeting Act. It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting
at which this resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of

the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meeting Act, 
Chapt. 551, Tex. Gov' t Code. 

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the  day of s'P mLy- 2014. 

ATTEST:

ee] 

By: 1D& 

11
Dixie Roberts, City Clerk

CITY OF ALVIN TEXAS

B:/. Y
Paul A. Horn, Mayor

Res 14-R•37 Page 2 of 2



DONATION AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

ALVIN SUNRISE ROTARY CLUB AND

CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS

This Donation Agreement ( the " Agreement") is made this I I day of '- DtG, 2015

Effective Date") by and among the Alvin Sunrise Rotary Club ( hereinafter referred to as

the " Donor"), and the City ofAlvin ( hereinafter referred to as the " City"). 

Donor and the City agree as follows: 

1. Donor Commitment. Donor pledges a total donation value of Fifty -One Thousand

Dollars ($51, 000) to the City over nine years for the benefit of the City Parks. 

The City acknowledges and recognizes that Donor previously donated a total of $10,000 for the
benefit of City Parks for rehabilitation of twelve ( 12) picnic tables in 2013 and eighteen ( 18) 
picnic tables in 2014. 

Donor hereby pledges that in Year 1 ( 2015), Donor will make cash donations totaling Eleven
Thousand Dollars ($ 11, 000) for the purchase and installation of wobble spheres ($ 3, 500) and the

purchase of a field sander ($ 6,500), and an additional $ 1, 000 donation for general Park use. It is

also understood and agreed that in Years 2-7 ( 2016-2021), Donor will submit additional donation

funds and/or equipment in the amount of Five Thousand Dollars ($5, 000) per year totaling Thirty
Thousand Dollars ($30,000). 

2. Payment Schedule. It is understood and agreed that Donor shall submit the Year

donation(s) totaling Eleven Thousand Dollars ($ 11, 000) in full on or before August 1, 2015. 

It is further understood and agreed that Donor shall submit Years 2-7 annual $5, 000 donations on

or before January 3181, beginning 2016, and continuing each year for five ( 5) additional years
with a final payment to be made on or before January 31, 2021.* 

The City may invest the donated funds as it shall best determine, pending distribution of same, 
for the use and purpose by the City ofAlvin Parks Department. 

3. Naming Right "/A For the donations listed above, and upon mutual acceptance

to Donor and the City and approval by Resolution by the City Council, the pavilion located at
Briscoe Park shall be named " Alvin Sunrise Rotary Pavilion". Any and all signage designed for
the Briscoe Park Pavilion shall be paid by and at the sole cost ofDonor. Additionally, all signage
design and location shall be approved by the City ofAlvin Parks Director prior to installation. 

It is further agreed that in Year 1 ( 2015) and during Years 2- 7 ( 2016-2021), Donor will have
exclusive usage rights for one ( 1) week during the year to the entire property of Briscoe Park



designated by the current approximate 42 acres) for the Alvin Music Festival and BBQ cook - 
off. The date of exclusive usage by Donor shall be approved by the City of Alvin Parks Director
and shall not interfere with any City parks' use obligations. Such exclusive use is subject to and
contingent upon Donor' s timely submission of the annual donations to the City. 

This Agreement pertaining to the naming rights of the pavilion as " Alvin Sunshine Rotary
Pavilion" shall remain in effect for a period of twenty (20) years, ending January 1, 2034, and is
subject to and contingent upon Rotary' s submission of full and final donation payments by
January 31, 2021. After January 1, 2034, Donor and the City may agree to additional terms for
any future naming rights as to be determined by Donor and City Council. 

4. Intent. It is the agreement of the parties and the intention and wish of Donor that this

donation and any unpaid promised installment under this Agreement shall constitute Donor' s
binding obligation and shall be enforceable at law and equity including, without limitation, 
against Donor and Donor' s personal representatives, and their successors and assigns. Donor

acknowledges that the City is relying, and shall continue to rely, on Donor' s gift being fully
satisfied as set forth herein. 

5. Additional Donations. Donor reserves the right to increase additional gifts and hereby

consents to additional contributions to the City subject to the provisions of this Agreement. 

6. Future Changed Circumstances. If, in the opinion of the City of Alvin, Texas, all or
part of this donation cannot at some time in the future be usefully or practically applied to the

above purposes, or if the purpose cannot be achieved because of a future change in law or

unforeseeable circumstances, it may be used for any related purpose which in the opinion of the

City ofAlvin will most nearly accomplish Donor' s wishes. 

14. Amendment. By mutual consent of the City and Donor, Donor' s legally or duly
appointed agent or attorney-in-fact, or the personal representative of Donor, any provision of this
Agreement may be amended, modified, or deleted. Any such changes, deletions or additions
shall be recorded in written signed addenda, which shall form part of this Agreement. 

15. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire understanding of the parties with

respect to the subject matter of the Agreement and is subject to the laws of the State of Texas. 

This Agreement also supersedes all other agreements and understandings, both oral and written, 

between the parties relating to the subject matter of the Agreement. 

In witness whereof, the parties to this Agreement have affixed their signatures: 

EXECUTED to be effective as of the Effective Date as stated above. 

Donatton Agmt — Naming Rights to Briscoe Park Pavilion Page 2 of 3



ATTEST: 

Dixie Roberts, City Secretary

ALVIN SUNRISE ROTARY CLUB

Michael Hoover

Title: President

Robert Vasquez

Title: Past President

CITY OF AL, 

Paul A. Horn, Mayor

Donation Agmt— Naming Rights to Briscoe Park Pavilion Page 3 of 3



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   2/7/2019 

Department: City Manager’s Office Contact: Junru Roland, City Manager 
 
Agenda Item:   Consider Resolution 19-R-07, amending the Alvin Museum Agreement related to the Alvin 

Museum Society’s utilization of the former Alvin Post Office building; and authorize the 
Mayor to sign said agreement subject to legal review. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☒Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   The City owns the former Alvin Post Office facility located at 300 W. Sealy Street, Alvin. In 1998, 
2016 and 2017, the City adopted resolutions providing for the Alvin Museum Society’s right to occupy and 
utilize the building for the purpose of collecting, maintaining, preserving and showcasing documentation, 
artifacts and relics of Alvin’s past.  
 
This Resolution amends the current agreement to reflect the following minor changes recommended by staff and 
the Alvin Museum Society: 
1.) Clarification that allows the Alvin Museum Society to utilize the entire first floor, including the new 

storage/work area.    
2.) Allowing the Alvin Museum Society to utilize a portion of the City’s available basement area for storage. 
3.) Updating the wording of the current agreement to reflect weekly janitorial service that is currently being 

provided to Museum.    
4.) Changing the contact information for the notice from the former City Manager to current City Manager.   
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 19-R-07. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☒ N/A ☐ Budgeted Item: Yes ☒ No ☐ N/A ☐ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 1/30/2019 SLH 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Resolution 19-R-07 
• 2017 Alvin Museum Agreement 
• 2019 Alvin Museum Agreement (amended red-lined) 

 
Recommendation:   Move to approve Resolution 19-R-07, amending the Alvin Museum Agreement 

establishing the Alvin Museum Society’s utilization of the former Alvin Post Office 
building; and authorize the Mayor to sign said agreement subject to legal review. 

 

 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 



RESOLUTION NO. 19-R-07 
 

 A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, 
TEXAS, MODIFYING THE ALVIN MUSEUM AGREEMENT RELATED 
TO THE ALVIN MUSEUM SOCIETY’S UTILIZATION OF THE FORMER 
ALVIN POST OFFICE BUILDING. 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Alvin owns the former federal Alvin Post Office building located 
at 300 W. Sealy Street, Alvin; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Alvin finds and determines that allowing the 

Alvin Museum Society (the “Museum Society”) to utilize the former post office building (the 
“Building”) for office space, exhibits, storage, functions, and other events would be in the best 
interest of the residents of Alvin and visitors to the City of Alvin; and  

 
WHEREAS, on May 19, 2016, the City Council adopted Resolution 16-R-15 authorizing 

the Museum Society to occupy and utilize the former Alvin Post Office building with certain 
conditions; and  

 
WHEREAS, on January 19, 2017, the City Council adopted Resolution 17-R-03 

approving an agreement to establish the Alvin Museum Society’s utilization of the former Alvin 
Post Office building 

 
WHEREAS, both the City and the Museum Society desire to modify the terms of their 

agreement; and  
 
WHEREAS, Resolution 19-R-07, modifies the current agreement and supersedes any and 

all previous agreements entered into between the City and the Museum; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS, 

THAT: 
 
Section 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact.     
 
Section 2. Proceedings. That the Amended Alvin Museum Agreement attached hereto is approved 
and the Mayor is authorized to execute the Agreement. 
 
Section 3. Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 
of the Texas Government Code.  



Res. 19-R-07                           Page 2 of 2 

 
Section 4.  Effective Date.  This resolution shall take effect upon its adoption.  
 
  
PASSED AND APPROVED on this the _______ day of ____________________, 2019. 
 
 
CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS     ATTEST:      
 
 
 
By:____________________________ By:_____________________________ 

Paul A. Horn, Mayor     Dixie Roberts, City Secretary   
  
 



THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
 

§  KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
 
COUNTY OF BRAZORIA § 
 
 

ALVIN MUSEUM AGREEMENT 
 
 This Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into on this the 7th_______ day 
of February___________________, 2017 20190, by and between the City of Alvin, a home–rule 
city and municipal corporation of the State of Texas (the “City”), and the Alvin Museum Society 
(the “Museum Society”), a non-profit organization under Section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code. 
 

W I T N E S S E T H : 
 
 WHEREAS, the City is the owner of a facility located at 300 W. Sealy, Alvin, Texas; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City adopted Resolution No. 98-R-18 which stated its commitment to the 
establishment of the Alvin Historical Museum and defined provisions between the City and the 
Museum Society; and  
 

WHEREAS, the citizens of Alvin voted a bond issue to renovate 300 W. Sealy, Alvin, 
Texas (the former post office building) for use as a Museum; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Museum Society offers the preservation of Alvin’s historical past; and 
 

WHEREAS, on _May 19________, 2016, the City adopted Resolution 16-R-15 
authorizing the Museum Society to occupy and utilize the former Alvin Post Office building with 
certain conditions; and 

 
WHEREAS, on January 19,________, 2017, the City adopted Resolution 17-R-03 

approving the initial Alvin Museum Agreement, establishing the Alvin Museum Society’s 
utilization of the former Alvin Post Office building;  
 
 WHEREAS, both the City and the Museum Society agree that it would be mutually 
beneficial for the Museum Society to collect, maintain, preserve and showcase documentation, 
artifacts and relics of Alvin’s past for current and future generations to enjoy in the old Alvin Post 
Office building located at 300 W. Sealy, Alvin, Texas; and 
 



Res 19-R-0720172019 Alvin Museum Agreement                   Page 2 of 8 

 

WHEREAS, the parties desire to modifyestablish the terms of their current agreement; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, Resolution 197-R-073, approving this agreementAgreement, supersedes any 
and all previous agreements entered into between the City and Museum Society; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants 
herein contained, the City and the Museum Society hereby covenant and agree as follows: 

 
ARTICLE I. 

DEFINITIONS 
 
“Alvin Museum Society” (“Museum Society”) is a non-profit organization under Section 501 
(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, which has been established to collect, preserve and display 
relics of Alvin’s past history. 
 
“City” is defined in the preamble hereof and includes its successors and assigns. 
 
“City Manager” means the City Manager of the City of Alvin or designee. 
 
“Alvin Historical Museum” (“Museum”) means the City’s facility located at 300 W. Sealy, 
Alvin, Texas. 
 

ARTICLE II. 
USE OF THE MUSEUM 

 
2.01 1.01Permitted Uses. 

The Museum Society shall utilize the ground and second floor (mezzanine) of the Museum 
to collect, preserve, hold and display documentation, artifacts and relics of Alvin’s history.  
The Museum Society shall determine regular hours of operation for the public to view and 
tour the museum.  The Museum Society shall establish and post entry or event fees for 
visitors. 

 
The Museum Society shall be allowed use of the Museum to provide a place to: 

a. hold meetings 
b. office space 
c. storage 
d. functions 
e. exhibits 
f. serve alcohol at private events; and  



Res 19-R-0720172019 Alvin Museum Agreement                   Page 3 of 8 

 

g. other related purposes.  
 

The Museum Society shall be allowed to utilize the first floor, including the storage/work 
area same square footage as of the effective date of this Agreement.  If the Museum Society 
desires to use additional space, an amendment to this Agreement shall be required.  The 
City shall continue to utilize the basement area of the Museum for City purposes and may 
allow the Museum Society to utilize a portion of the basement for storage at the discretion 
of the City Manager, taking into consideration storage space needed by the City. 
 
 

 
2.02 1.02Quarterly Report 

 
The Museum Society shall submit an Operational Report to the City Manager by the 10th 
day of January, April, July and October of each year. 
 

2.03 1.03Maintenance. 
The Museum Society agrees to accept the Museum in its present condition and confirms 
its suitability and sufficiency for the use proposed by the Museum Society.  The Museum 
Society agrees to maintain the Museum in a clean condition. The Museum Society shall 
not make any improvements in or changes to the Museum building without written 
approval of the City Manager. 

 
Responsibilities of the Museum Society: 

 
• Notifying the City Manager before any event or function scheduled to occur outside 

of normal city business hours  
• The Museum Society agrees to be the sole responsible party for patrons attending 

any event or function serving alcohol 
• Creation and maintenance of all displays including any changes in the electrical or 

lighting required for the displays 
• Telephone service 
• Security systems 
• Furniture and equipment not part of the building 
• Volunteers or paid staff to enable the public entry and the operation of the Museum 
• Supplies 
• Front sign 

 
Responsibilities of the City: 

 



Res 19-R-0720172019 Alvin Museum Agreement                   Page 4 of 8 

 

• Utilities including electricity, water, sewer, garbage collection, and fire equipment 
monitoring 

• Weekly Janitorial service two times a month or in response to special situations 
• Maintenance of the exterior of the building and grounds, including lighting, 

mowing, edging, trimming, cleaning, landscaping, and repair 
• Maintenance of the interior of the building including all portions of the original 

building or parts of the renovation of the building 
• Internet service 

 
In the event that the building and/or infrastructure (i.e.: electrical, plumbing, roofing, pipes, 
etc.) should require maintenance and/or repairs which costs exceed the City budget for the 
Museum and the City does not have funds during the fiscal year to make such repairs, the 
City shall not be held liable to make such repairs until funding shall become available 
unless repairs or alternative measures are required to protect the assets of the Museum 
Society.  During such an interim period, the Museum may be required to close to the public 
if such issues are a risk to public health and safety. 

 
2.04 1.04No Waste, Nuisance or Unlawful Use. 

The Museum Society shall not permit, or allow to be permitted, any waste on or at the 
Museum, nor shall the Museum Society create or allow any nuisance or unsafe condition 
to exist on or at the Museum. The Museum Society shall not allow the Museum to be used 
for any unlawful purpose. 

 
2.05 1.05Right-of-Entry. 

The City may enter the Museum at any time for any purpose necessary, incidental to, or 
connected with, the Museum Society or in the exercise of the City’s governmental 
functions.  Any such entry or re-entry shall not constitute a trespass or create a case of 
action for damages against the City.  The Museum Society shall provide to the City 
Manager or his designee a master key to the building and codes to all alarm systems. 

 
2.06 1.06Security Measures. 

The Museum Society shall comply with the City’s security requirements with respect to 
the Museum building.  

 
• All alarm systems shall be activated and the building secured when the building is 

not occupied.  
• When alcohol is served at private events, the Museum Society shall comply with 

all state, county or local rules.   
• In the event alcohol is to be present for rental of the Museum premises, an Alvin 

Police Officer is required for security purposes. The City Manager shall be the 
point of contact for any specific requirements. 



Res 19-R-0720172019 Alvin Museum Agreement                   Page 5 of 8 

 

 
This shall also include meeting all City codes and regulations unless waived in writing by 
the City Manager. 

 
ARTICLE IIIII. 

TERM AND TERMINATION 
 

3.01 2.01Term. 
The term of this Agreement shall be five (5) years and commence _February 
7____________, 20197[SH1], and shall end _February 7, ____________, 20242.  Either 
party may send written notice to the other not less than one-hundred eighty (180) days prior 
to expiration of the Agreement indicating its desire to end this Agreement.  This Agreement 
shall continue in force until such time that it is terminated by either party according to the 
requirements stated above. 
 

3.02 2.02Modification of Agreement.  
Terms of the Agreement may be renegotiated from time to time.  Any changes to this 
Agreement shall require the City Council’s and the Museum Society’s approval. 
 

3.03 2.03Termination of Agreement. 
(a) Termination of this Agreement by the City, shall be by Resolution adopted by the 

City Council.  Before any such Resolution is adopted, Museum Society shall be 
given at least thirty (30) days advance written notice.  Notice shall set forth the 
causes and reasons for the proposed termination, shall advise Museum Society 
that it will be provided an opportunity to be heard by City Council regarding such 
proposed action before any such action is taken, and shall set forth the time, date, 
and place of the meeting where Council will consider the termination of this 
agreement. 

 
In the event of termination for default, the City shall have the right to retain 
possession of the museum building, subject to the provisions of this agreement. 

 
(b) In the event that the Museum Society can no longer operate and maintain the 

Museum in a manner acceptable to the City, the Museum Society will relinquish 
control of the museum building to the City, terminating this agreement. 

 
(c) In the event of a natural or man-made disaster causing substantial damage to 

the museum building, the City, at its option, may select another site to locate 
the Museum.  Should insurance not provide ample funds to repair the existing 
building and/or a construct a new building, the City, at its option, may elect to 



Res 19-R-0720172019 Alvin Museum Agreement                   Page 6 of 8 

 

transfer such insurance monies to the Museum Society to proceed on its own to 
renovate an existing building or to construct a new facility and then terminate 
this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE IVIII. 

INSURANCE 
 
34.01 The City agrees that at its sole cost, it will procure and maintain in full place and effect 

during the term hereof, a policy of insurance to cover damages of the physical building and 
shall include general liability insurance.   

 
34.02 The Museum Society shall provide insurance for its contents and personal property under 

its care, custody and control and liability insurance for any and all visitors and its volunteers 
in an amount satisfactory to the City. The Museum Society shall indemnify and hold the 
City harmless for any and all claims that arise during the Museum Society’s utilization of 
the museum building.  

 
34.03 The Museum Society shall reimburse the City for any deductible amount(s) charged by the 

insurance carrier for the City charged as a result of damages to the physical building caused 
by the Museum Society.  
 

ARTICLE VIV. 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 
5.01 4.01Modifications. 

This Agreement cannot be modified except upon written authorization of the City Council.  
No officer or employee shall have the right to extend, modify, or change the terms hereof 
except by written authority of the City Council and the Museum Society. 

 
5.02 4.02Assignment. 

This Agreement cannot be assigned without prior written approval of the City Council and 
the Museum Society. 

 
5.03 4.03Notice. 

All notices required or provided pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and includes 
electronic communication. Notice by electronic communication shall be effective with a 
‘read receipt’ confirmation.  Notice by mail shall be effective when deposited in the United 
States mail, either certified or registered mail. All notices shall be addressed or emailed to 
the respective party at the addresses set forth below: 

 



Res 19-R-0720172019 Alvin Museum Agreement                   Page 7 of 8 

 

 City of Alvin    Alvin Museum Society 
 City Manager    President  
 216 W. Sealy    P.O. Box 1902 
 Alvin, Texas 77511   Alvin, Texas 77512-1902 

  jrolandsbreland@cityofalvin.com  alvinms@att.net  
 
5.04 4.04Applicable Laws. 

The Museum Society covenants and agrees that it will fully comply with all laws, 
ordinances, rules and regulations of the City, the State of Texas, and the United States 
applicable to, related to, or touching upon its operations within the Museum building 
located at 300 W. Sealy. 

 
5.05 4.05Licenses and Permits. 

The Museum Society shall obtain and pay for all licenses, permits and certificates required 
by any statute, ordinance, rule, or regulation of any regulatory body having jurisdiction 
over the conduct of its operation, unless waived in writing or covered by the City. 

 
5.06 4.06Entire Agreement. 

This Agreement contains all the agreements of the parties relating to the subject matter 
hereof and is the full and final expression of the agreement between the parties. 

 
5.07 4.07Severability. 

In the event any covenant, condition or provision contained herein is held to be invalid by 
a court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity of any such covenant, condition or 
provision shall in no way affect any other covenant, condition or provision contained 
herein, provided that the invalidity of any such covenant, condition or provision does not 
materially prejudice either the City or the Museum Society in its respective rights and 
obligation contained in the valid covenants, conditions and provisions of the Agreement. 

 
5.08 4.08Remedies Cumulative. 

The City's right to terminate the Agreement under Section 3.03 is not exclusive, and the 
City's termination of the Agreement shall not constitute an election of remedies. Instead, it 
shall be in addition to any and all other legal and equitable rights and remedies which the 
City may have.  

 
5.09 4.09Place or Performance. 

This Agreement shall be performable and enforceable in Brazoria County, Texas, and shall 
be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas. 

 
5.10 4.10Benefits. 

mailto:@cityofalvin.com
mailto:alvinms@att.net


Res 19-R-0720172019 Alvin Museum Agreement                   Page 8 of 8 

 

This Agreement is made for the sole and exclusive benefit of the City of Alvin and the 
Museum Society and is not made for the benefit of any third party. 

 
5.11 4.11Ambiguities. 

In the event of any ambiguity in any of the terms of this Agreement, it shall not be construed 
for or against any party hereto on the basis that such party did or did not author the same. 

 
5.12 4.12Successors and Assigns. 

This Agreement may not extend to any successor of the Museum Society without the 
written consent of the Alvin City Council. 

 
 
 
ALVIN MUSEUM SOCIETY  CITY OF ALVIN 
 
 
By: __________________________  By:_______________________ 
Name:  Katheryn Mattes   Paul A. Horn  
Title:  President    Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST/SEAL    ATTEST/SEAL 
 
By:___________________________ By:________________________ 
Name:  Tom StanselBarbara Passmore   Dixie Roberts 
Title:  Chief Operations OfficerPresident-Elect   City 
ClerkSecretary 



THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
 

§  KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
 
COUNTY OF BRAZORIA § 
 
 

ALVIN MUSEUM AGREEMENT 
 
 This Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into on this the 7th day of February 
2019, by and between the City of Alvin, a home rule city and municipal corporation of the State 
of Texas (the “City”), and the Alvin Museum Society (the “Museum Society”), a non-profit 
organization under Section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
 

W I T N E S S E T H : 
 
 WHEREAS, the City is the owner of a facility located at 300 W. Sealy, Alvin, Texas; and 
 

WHEREAS, in 1998, the City adopted Resolution No. 98-R-18 which stated its 
commitment to the establishment of the Alvin Historical Museum and defined provisions between 
the City and the Museum Society; and  
 

WHEREAS, the citizens of Alvin voted a bond issue to renovate 300 W. Sealy, Alvin, 
Texas (the former post office building) for use as a Museum; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Museum Society offers the preservation of Alvin’s historical past; and 
 

WHEREAS, on May 19, 2016, the City adopted Resolution 16-R-15 authorizing the 
Museum Society to occupy and utilize the former Alvin Post Office building with certain 
conditions; and 

 
WHEREAS, on January 19, 2017, the City adopted Resolution 17-R-03 approving the 

initial Alvin Museum Agreement, establishing the Alvin Museum Society’s utilization of the 
former Alvin Post Office building;  
 
 WHEREAS, both the City and the Museum Society agree that it would be mutually 
beneficial for the Museum Society to collect, maintain, preserve and showcase documentation, 
artifacts and relics of Alvin’s past for current and future generations to enjoy in the old Alvin Post 
Office building located at 300 W. Sealy, Alvin, Texas; and 
 

WHEREAS, the parties desire to modify the terms of the current agreement; and 
 



2019 Alvin Museum Agreement                   Page 2 of 8 

 

WHEREAS, Resolution 19-R-07, approving this Agreement, supersedes any and all 
previous agreements entered into between the City and Museum Society; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants 
herein contained, the City and the Museum Society hereby covenant and agree as follows: 

 
ARTICLE I. 

USE OF THE MUSEUM 
 
1.01 Permitted Uses 

 
The Museum Society shall utilize the ground and second floor (mezzanine) of the Museum 
to collect, preserve, hold and display documentation, artifacts and relics of Alvin’s history.  
The Museum Society shall determine regular hours of operation for the public to view and 
tour the museum.  The Museum Society shall establish and post entry or event fees for 
visitors. 

 
The Museum Society shall be allowed use of the Museum to provide a place to: 

a. hold meetings 
b. office space 
c. storage 
d. functions 
e. exhibits 
f. serve alcohol at private events; and  
g. other related purposes.  

 
The Museum Society shall be allowed to utilize the first floor, including the storage/work 
area.  If the Museum Society desires to use additional space, an amendment to this 
Agreement shall be required.  The City shall continue to utilize the basement area of the 
Museum for City purposes and may allow the Museum Society to utilize a portion of the 
basement for storage at the discretion of the City Manager, taking into consideration 
storage space needed by the City. 

 
1.02 Quarterly Report 

 
The Museum Society shall submit an Operational Report to the City Manager by the 10th 
day of January, April, July, and October of each year. 
 

  



2019 Alvin Museum Agreement                   Page 3 of 8 

 

1.03 Maintenance 
 
The Museum Society agrees to accept the Museum in its present condition and confirms 
its suitability and sufficiency for the use proposed by the Museum Society.  The Museum 
Society agrees to maintain the Museum in a clean condition. The Museum Society shall 
not make any improvements in or changes to the Museum building without written 
approval of the City Manager. 

 
Responsibilities of the Museum Society: 

 
• The Museum Society shall notify the City Manager before any event or function 

scheduled to occur outside of normal city business hours 
• The Museum Society agrees to be the sole responsible party for patrons attending 

any event or function serving alcohol 
• Creation and maintenance of all displays including any changes in the electrical or 

lighting required for the displays 
• Telephone service 
• Security systems 
• Furniture and equipment not part of the building 
• Volunteers or paid staff to enable the public entry and the operation of the Museum 
• Supplies 
• Front sign 

 
Responsibilities of the City: 

 
• Utilities including electricity, water, sewer, garbage collection, and fire equipment 

monitoring 
• Weekly Janitorial service or in response to special situations 
• Maintenance of the exterior of the building and grounds, including lighting, 

mowing, edging, trimming, cleaning, landscaping, and repair 
• Maintenance of the interior of the building including all portions of the original 

building or parts of the renovation of the building 
• Internet service 

 
In the event that the building and/or infrastructure (i.e.: electrical, plumbing, roofing, pipes, 
etc.) should require maintenance and/or repairs which costs exceed the City budget for the 
Museum and the City does not have funds during the fiscal year to make such repairs, the 
City shall not be held liable to make such repairs until funding shall become available 
unless repairs or alternative measures are required to protect the assets of the Museum 



2019 Alvin Museum Agreement                   Page 4 of 8 

 

Society.  During such an interim period, the Museum may be required to close to the public 
if such issues are a risk to public health and safety. 

 
1.04 No Waste, Nuisance or Unlawful Use 

 
The Museum Society shall not permit, or allow to be permitted, any waste on or at the 
Museum, nor shall the Museum Society create or allow any nuisance or unsafe condition 
to exist on or at the Museum. The Museum Society shall not allow the Museum to be used 
for any unlawful purpose. 

 
1.05 Right-of-Entry 

 
The City may enter the Museum at any time for any purpose necessary, incidental to, or 
connected with, the Museum Society or in the exercise of the City’s governmental 
functions.  Any such entry or re-entry shall not constitute a trespass or create a case of 
action for damages against the City.  The Museum Society shall provide to the City 
Manager or his designee a master key to the building and codes to all alarm systems. 

 
1.06 Security Measures 

 
The Museum Society shall comply with the City’s security requirements with respect to 
the Museum building.  

 
• All alarm systems shall be activated and the building secured when the building is 

not occupied.  
• When alcohol is served at private events, the Museum Society shall comply with 

all state, county or local rules.   
• In the event alcohol is to be present for rental of the Museum premises, an Alvin 

Police Officer is required for security purposes. The City Manager shall be the 
point of contact for any specific requirements. 

 
This shall also include meeting all City codes and regulations unless waived in writing by 
the City Manager. 

 
ARTICLE II. 

TERM AND TERMINATION 
 
2.01 Term 
 

The term of this Agreement shall be five (5) years and commence on February 7, 2019, 
and shall end on February 7, 2024.  Either party may send written notice to the other not 



2019 Alvin Museum Agreement                   Page 5 of 8 

 

less than one-hundred eighty (180) days prior to expiration of the Agreement indicating its 
desire to end this Agreement.  This Agreement shall continue in force until such time that 
it is terminated by either party according to the requirements stated above. 
 

2.02 Modification of Agreement 
 
Terms of the Agreement may be renegotiated from time to time.  Any changes to this 
Agreement must be in writing and shall require the City Council’s and the Museum 
Society’s approval. 
 

2.03 Termination of Agreement 
 

a) Termination of this Agreement by the City shall be by Resolution adopted by the City 
Council.  Before any such Resolution is adopted, Museum Society shall be given at least 
thirty (30) days advance written notice.  Notice shall set forth the causes and reasons for 
the proposed termination, shall advise Museum Society that it will be provided an 
opportunity to be heard by City Council regarding such proposed action before any such 
action is taken, and shall set forth the time, date, and place of the meeting where Council 
will consider the termination of this Agreement. 
 

b) In the event of termination for default, the City shall have the right to retain possession 
of the museum building, subject to the provisions of this Agreement. 

 
c) In the event that the Museum Society can no longer operate and maintain the Museum 

in a manner acceptable to the City, the Museum Society will relinquish control of the 
museum building to the City, thereby terminating this Agreement. 

 
d) In the event of a natural or man-made disaster causing substantial damage to the 

museum building, the City, at its option, may select another site to locate the Museum.  
Should insurance not provide ample funds to repair the existing building and/or a 
construct a new building, the City, at its option, may elect to transfer such insurance 
monies to the Museum Society to proceed on its own to renovate an existing building 
or to construct a new facility and then terminate this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE III. 
INSURANCE 

 
3.01 The City agrees that at its sole cost, it will procure and maintain in full place and effect 

during the term hereof, a policy of insurance to cover damages of the physical building and 
shall include general liability insurance.   

 



2019 Alvin Museum Agreement                   Page 6 of 8 

 

3.02 The Museum Society shall provide insurance for its contents and personal property under 
its care, custody and control and liability insurance for any and all visitors and its volunteers 
in an amount satisfactory to the City. The Museum Society shall indemnify and hold the 
City harmless for any and all claims that arise during the Museum Society’s utilization of 
the museum building.  

 
3.03 The Museum Society shall reimburse the City for any deductible amount(s) charged by the 

insurance carrier for the City charged as a result of damages to the physical building caused 
by the Museum Society.  
 

ARTICLE IV. 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 
4.01 Modifications 

 
This Agreement cannot be modified except upon written authorization of the City Council.  
No officer or employee shall have the right to extend, modify, or change the terms hereof 
except by written authority of the City Council and the Museum Society. 

 
4.02 Assignment 

 
This Agreement cannot be assigned without prior written approval of the City Council and 
the Museum Society. 

 
4.03 Notice 

 
All notices required or provided pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and includes 
electronic communication. Notice by electronic communication shall be effective with a 
‘read receipt’ confirmation.  Notice by mail shall be effective when deposited in the United 
States mail, either certified or registered mail. All notices shall be addressed or emailed to 
the respective party at the addresses set forth below: 

 
 City of Alvin    Alvin Museum Society 
 City Manager    President  
 216 W. Sealy    P.O. Box 1902 
 Alvin, Texas 77511   Alvin, Texas 77512-1902 

  jroland@cityofalvin.com  alvinms@att.net  
 
  

mailto:@cityofalvin.com
mailto:alvinms@att.net


2019 Alvin Museum Agreement                   Page 7 of 8 

 

4.04 Applicable Laws 
 
The Museum Society covenants and agrees that it will fully comply with all laws, 
ordinances, rules and regulations of the City, the State of Texas, and the United States 
applicable to, related to, or touching upon its operations within the Museum building 
located at 300 W. Sealy, Alvin, Texas. 

 
4.05 Licenses and Permits 

 
The Museum Society shall obtain and pay for all licenses, permits and certificates required 
by any statute, ordinance, rule, or regulation of any regulatory body having jurisdiction 
over the conduct of its operation, unless waived in writing or covered by the City. 

 
4.06 Entire Agreement 

 
This Agreement contains all the agreements of the parties relating to the subject matter 
hereof and is the full and final expression of the agreement between the parties. 

 
4.07 Severability 

 
In the event any covenant, condition or provision contained herein is held to be invalid by 
a court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity of any such covenant, condition or 
provision shall in no way affect any other covenant, condition or provision contained 
herein, provided that the invalidity of any such covenant, condition or provision does not 
materially prejudice either the City or the Museum Society in its respective rights and 
obligation contained in the valid covenants, conditions and provisions of the Agreement. 

 
4.08 Remedies Cumulative 

 
The City’s right to terminate the Agreement under Section 2.03 is not exclusive, and the 
City’s termination of the Agreement shall not constitute an election of remedies. Instead, 
it shall be in addition to any and all other legal and equitable rights and remedies which the 
City may have.  

 
4.09 Place or Performance 

 
This Agreement shall be performable and enforceable in Brazoria County, Texas, and shall 
be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas. 

 



2019 Alvin Museum Agreement                   Page 8 of 8 

 

4.10 Benefit 
 
This Agreement is made for the sole and exclusive benefit of the City of Alvin and the 
Museum Society and is not made for the benefit of any third party. 

 
4.11 Ambiguities 

 
In the event of any ambiguity in any of the terms of this Agreement, it shall not be construed 
for or against any party hereto on the basis that such party did or did not author the same. 

 
4.12 Successors and Assigns. 

 
This Agreement may not extend to any successor of the Museum Society without the 
written consent of the Alvin City Council. 

 
 
 
ALVIN MUSEUM SOCIETY  CITY OF ALVIN 
 
 
By: __________________________  By:_______________________ 
Name:  Katheryn Mattes   Paul A. Horn  
Title:  President    Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST/SEAL    ATTEST/SEAL 
 
By:___________________________ By:________________________ 
Name:  Tom Stansel    Dixie Roberts 
Title:  Chief Operations Officer  City Secretary 



THE STATE OF TEXAS    §

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

COUNTY OF BRAZORIA §

ALVIN MUSEUM AGREEMENT

This Agreement ( the " Agreement") is made and entered into on this the fh day of
Jan 2017 by and between the City of Alvin, a home—rule city and municipal

corporation o he State of Texas ( the " City"), and the Alvin Museum Society ( the " Museum

Society"), a non- profit organization under Section 501 ( c) ( 3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

WITNESSETH :

WHEREAS, the City is the owner of a facility located at 300 W. Sealy, Alvin, Texas; and

WHEREAS, the City adopted Resolution No, 98- R- 18 which stated its commitment to the

establishment of the Alvin Historical Museum and defined provisions between the City and the
Museum Society; and

WHEREAS, the citizens of Alvin voted a bond issue to renovate 300 W. Sealy, Alvin,
Texas ( the former post office building) for use as a Museum; and

WHEREAS, the Museum Society offers the preservation of Alvin' s historical past; and

WHEREAS, the City adopted Resolution 16- R- 15 authorizing the Museum Society to
occupy and utilize the former Alvin Post Office building with certain conditions; and

WHEREAS, both the City and the Museum Society agree that it would be mutually
beneficial for the Museum Society to collect, maintain, preserve and showcase documentation,
artifacts and relics of Alvin' s past for current and future generations to enjoy in the old Alvin Post
Office building located at 300 W. Sealy, Alvin, Texas; and

WHEREAS, the parties desire to establish the terms of their agreement; and

WHEREAS, Resolution 17- R- 03, approving this agreement, supersedes any and all
previous agreements entered into between the City and Museum Society;

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants

herein contained, the City and the Museum Society hereby covenant and agree as follows:



ARTICLE I.

DEFINITIONS

Alvin Museum Society" (" Museum Society") is a non- profit organization under Section 501

c)( 3) of the Internal Revenue Code, which has been established to collect, preserve and display
relics of Alvin' s past history.

City" is defined in the preamble hereof and includes its successors and assigns.

City Manager" means the City Manager of the City of Alvin or designee.

Alvin Historical Museum" (' Museum") means the City' s facility located at 300 W. Sealy,
Alvin, Texas.

ARTICLE II.

USE OF THE MUSEUM

2. 01 Permitted Uses.

The Museum Society shall utilize the ground and second floor( mezzanine) of the Museum

to collect, preserve, hold and display documentation, artifacts and relics ofAlvin' s history.
The Museum Society shall determine regular hours ofoperation for the public to view and
tour the museum.  The Museum Society shall establish and post entry or event fees for
visitors.

The Museum Society shall be allowed use of the Museum to provide a place to:
a.  hold meetings

b.  office space

c.   storage

d.  functions

e.   exhibits

f serve alcohol at private events; and

g.  other related purposes.

The Museum Society shall utilize the same square footage as of the effective date of this

Agreement.  If the Museum Society desires to use additional space, an amendment to this
Agreement shall be required.  The City shall continue to utilize the basement area of the

Museum for City purposes.

2017 Alvin Museum Agreement Page 2 of 8



2. 02 Quarterly Report

The Museum Society shall submit an Operational Report to the City Manager by the 10' h
day of January, April, July and October of each year.

2.03 Maintenance.

The Museum Society agrees to accept the Museum in its present condition and confirms

its suitability and sufficiency for the use proposed by the Museum Society.  The Museum
Society agrees to maintain the Museum in a clean condition. The Museum Society shall

not make any improvements in or changes to the Museum building without written
approval of the City Manager.

Responsibilities of the Museum Society:

Notifying the City Manager before any event or function scheduled to occur outside
of normal city business hours

The Museum Society agrees to be the sole responsible party for patrons attending
any event or function serving alcohol

Creation and maintenance of all displays including any changes in the electrical or
lighting required for the displays
Telephone service

Security systems

Furniture and equipment not part of the building
Volunteers or paid staff to enable the public entry and the operation of the Museum
Supplies

Front sign

Responsibilities of the City:

Utilities including electricity, water, sewer, garbage collection, and fire equipment
monitoring

Janitorial service two times a month or in response to special situations

Maintenance of the exterior of the building and grounds, including lighting,
mowing, edging, trimming, cleaning, landscaping, and repair

Maintenance of the interior of the building including all portions of the original
building or parts of the renovation of the building
Internet service

In the event that the building and/ or infrastructure( i.e.  electrical, plumbing, roofing, pipes,
etc.) should require maintenance and/or repairs which costs exceed the City budget for the

2017 Alvin Museum Agreement Page 3 of 8



Museum and the City does not have funds during the fiscal year to make such repairs, the
City shall not be held liable to make such repairs until funding shall become available
unless repairs or alternative measures are required to protect the assets of the Museum

Society. During such an interim period, the Museum may be required to close to the public

if such issues are a risk to public health and safety.

2. 04 No Waste Nuisance or Unlawful Use,

The Museum Society shall not permit, or allow to be permitted, any waste on or at the
Museum, nor shall the Museum Society create or allow any nuisance or unsafe condition
to exist on or at the Museum. The Museum Society shall not allow the Museum to be used

for any unlawful purpose.

2. 05 Right- of-EntrL

The City may enter the Museum at any time for any purpose necessary, incidental to, or

connected with, the Museum Society or in the exercise of the City' s governmental
functions.  Any such entry or re- entry shall not constitute a trespass or create a case of

action for damages against the City.   The Museum Society shall provide to the City

Manager or his designee a master key to the building and codes to all alarm systems.

2. 06 Security Measures.

The Museum Society shall comply with the City' s security requirements with respect to
the Museum building.

All alarm systems shall be activated and the building secured when the building is
not occupied.

When alcohol is served at private events, the Museum Society shall comply with
all state, county or local rules.
In the event alcohol is to be present for rental of the Museum premises, an Alvin

Police Officer is required for security purposes. The City Manager shall be the
point of contact for any specific requirements.

This shall also include meeting all City codes and regulations unless waived in writing by
the City Manager.

ARTICLE III.

TERM AND TERMINATION

3. 01 Term,

The term of this Agreement shall be five ( 5) years and commenceJ1QLt1( A 2017,

and shall end Rh bL a 2022. Either party may send written notice to e other not

less than one- hundred L4ghty( 180) days prior to expiration of the Agreement indicating its

2017 Alvin Museum Agreement Page 4 of 8



desire to end this Agreement.  This Agreement shall continue in force until such time that

it is terminated by either party according to the requirements stated above.

3. 42 Modification of Agreement.

Terms of the Agreement may be renegotiated from time to time.  Any changes to this

Agreement shall require the City Council' s and the Museum Society' s approval.

3. 03 Termination of Agreement.

a) Termination of this Agreement by the City, shall be by Resolution adopted by the
City Council.  Before any such Resolution is adopted, Museum Society shall be
given at least thirty (30) days advance written notice.  Notice shall set forth the

causes and reasons for the proposed termination, shall advise Museum Society
that it will be provided an opportunity to be heard by City Council regarding such
proposed action before any such action is taken, and shall set forth the time, date,

and place of the meeting where Council will consider the termination of this
agreement.

In the event of termination for default, the City shall have the right to retain

possession of the museum building, subject to the provisions of this agreement.

b) In the event that the Museum Society can no longer operate and maintain the

Museum in a manner acceptable to the City, the Museum Society will relinquish

control of the museum building to the City, terminating this agreement.

c) In the event of a natural or man- made disaster causing substantial damage to
the museum building, the City, at its option, may select another site to locate
the Museum.  Should insurance not provide ample funds to repair the existing
building and/or a construct a new building, the City, at its option, may elect to
transfer such insurance monies to the Museum Society to proceed on its own to
renovate an existing building or to construct a new facility and then terminate
this Agreement.

ARTICLE IV.

INSURANCE

4. 01 The City agrees that at its sole cost, it will procure and maintain in full place and effect

during the term hereof, a policy of insurance to cover damages of the physical building and
shall include general liability insurance.

2017 Alvin Museum Agreement Page 5 of 8



4.02 The Museum Society shall provide insurance for its contents and personal property under
its care, custody and control and liability insurance for any and all visitors and its volunteers
in an amount satisfactory to the City. The Museum Society shall indemnify and hold the

City harmless for any and all claims that arise during the Museum Society' s utilization of
the museum building.

4. 03 The Museum Society shall reimburse the City for any deductible amount( s) charged by the
insurance carrier for the City charged as a result of damages to the physical building caused
by the Museum Society.

ARTICLE V.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

5. 01 Modifications,

This Agreement cannot be modified except upon written authorization of the City Council.
No officer or employee shall have the right to extend, modify, or change the terms hereof
except by written authority of the City Council and the Museum Society.

5. 02 Assignment.

This Agreement cannot be assigned without prior written approval of the City Council and
the Museum Society.

5. 03 Notice.

All notices required or provided pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and includes
electronic communication. Notice by electronic communication shall be effective with a
read receipt' confirmation. Notice by mail shall be effective when deposited in the United

States mail, either certified or registered mail. All notices shall be addressed or emailed to

the respective party at the addresses set forth below;

City of Alvin Alvin Museum Society

City Manager President

216 W. Sealy P. O. Box 1902

Alvin, Texas 77511 Alvin, Texas 77512- 1902

sbreland@cityofalvin. com alvinms rr, att. net

5. 04 Applicable Laws.

The Museum Society covenants and agrees that it will fully comply with all laws,
ordinances, rules and regulations of the City, the State of Texas, and the United States

applicable to, related to, or touching upon its operations within the Museum building
located at 300 W. Sealy.

2017 Alvin Museum Agreement Page 6 of 8



5. 05 Licenses and Permits.

The Museum Society shall obtain and pay for all licenses, permits and certificates required

by any statute, ordinance, rule, or regulation of any regulatory body having jurisdiction
over the conduct of its operation, unless waived in writing or covered by the City.

5. 06 Entire Agreement.

This Agreement contains all the agreements of the parties relating to the subject matter
hereof and is the full and final expression of the agreement between the parties.

5. 07 Severability.

In the event any covenant, condition or provision contained herein is held to be invalid by
a court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity of any such covenant,  condition or
provision shall in no way affect any other covenant, condition or provision contained
herein, provided that the invalidity of any such covenant, condition or provision does not
materially prejudice either the City or the Museum Society in its respective rights and

obligation contained in the valid covenants, conditions and provisions of the Agreement.

5. 08 Remedies Cumulative.

The City' s right to terminate the Agreement under Section 3. 03 is not exclusive, and the

City' s termination of the Agreement shall not constitute an election of remedies. Instead, it

shall be in addition to any and all other legal and equitable rights and remedies which the
City may have.

5. 09 Place or Performance.

This Agreement shall be performable and enforceable in Brazoria County, Texas and shall
be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas.

5. 10 Benefits.

This Agreement is made for the sole and exclusive benefit of the City of Alvin and the

Museum Society and is not made for the benefit of any third party.

5. 11 Ambiguities.

In the event ofany ambiguity in any of the terms of this Agreement, it shall not be construed

for or against any party hereto on the basis that such party did or did not author the same.

5. 12 Successors and Assigns.

This Agreement may not extend to any successor of the Museum Society without the
written consent of the Alvin City Council.

2017 Alvin Museum Agreement Page 7 of 8



ALVIN MUSEUM SOCIETY CITY OF ALVIN

By: By: ra_

Name:  Ka eryn Mattes Paul A. Horn

Title:    President Mayor

ATTEST/ SEAL ATTEST/ SEAL

By:      a/Lfifu  By:
Name:   Barbara Passmore xie Roberts

Title:    President- Elect City Clerk

2017 Alvin Museum Agreement Page 8 of 8



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   2/7/2019 

Department:  Engineering Contact: Michelle Segovia, City Engineer 
 
Agenda Item:   Consider Resolution 19-R-08, releasing and terminating two (2) utility easements 

previously granted to the City of Alvin on property located near the southeast corner of 
Bypass 35 and Highway 6. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☒Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   This resolution formally acknowledges the City’s release and termination of two 15’ wide utility 
easements that were previously granted on the property at the southeast corner of Bypass 35 and Highway 6 
that is now known as Raceway / Cline Crossing.  
 
In 2012, prior to the Construction of the Raceway Gas Station, there was a sanitary sewer main in these 
easements as shown on the attached map (represented as the black and white dashed line). During the 
construction of the Raceway Gas Station, the sewer line was relocated further to the south and placed within a 
newly dedicated utility easement (new line shown in green to the south), therefore these easements are no 
longer needed. The easements must be formally released so that the Cline Crossing tract where a proposed 
Chick-fil-A Restaurant is to be located will be clear of encroachments. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 19-R-08. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount: 
 

1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 1/30/2019 SLH 
 
 

Supporting documents attached: 

• Resolution 19-R-08 
• Easement Releases with exhibits 
• Utility Map  

 
Recommendation:   Move to approve Resolution 19-R-08, releasing and terminating two (2) utility 

easements previously granted to the City of Alvin on property located near the 
southeast corner of Bypass 35 and Highway 6. 

 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 



 
RESOLUTION 19-R-08 

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, 
TEXAS, RELEASING AND TERMINATING UTILITY EASEMENTS 
GRANTED TO THE CITY OF ALVIN. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Alvin, Texas, desires to release and terminate said UTILITY 
EASEMENTS, attached hereto as Exhibit 1, previously granted to the City and more formally 
described as follows: 

1. Being a public utility easement 15 feet in width and recorded on February 3, 
2003, under Clerk’s File Number 03 006784 of the Official Public Records of 
Real Property of Brazoria County, Texas. 
 

2. Being a public utility easement 15 feet in width and recorded on March 4, 
2003, under Clerk’s File Number 03 012892 of the Official Public Records of 
Real Property of Brazoria County, Texas. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ALVIN, TEXAS: 

Section 1. That the City Council hereby releases the Utility Easements previously granted to 
the City of Alvin. 

Section 2. That said Release and Termination of the Easements shall be recorded in the Deed 
Records of Brazoria County, Texas. 

Section 3. That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage.  
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 7th day of February 2019.  
  
 

CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS    ATTEST 

 

 

By: _____________________________  By: ____________________________ 
 Paul A. Horn, Mayor     Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 
 
 





















 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   2/7/2019 

Department:  Parks and Recreation Contact:  Dan Kelinske, Director  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider Resolution 19-R-09, requesting members of the 86th Legislative Session of the 

State of Texas to support legislation that provides stewardship, health and wellbeing and 
connectivity for local and state parks. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☒Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   The City of Alvin is a member of the Texas Recreation and Park Society (TRAPS) which is a 501 
(c)(3) nonprofit organization providing advocacy, education and networking to parks and recreation 
professionals.  TRAPS has requested its’ membership to show support for legislation that provides stewardship, 
health and wellbeing and connectivity for local and state parks during the 86th Legislative Session.   
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 19-R-09. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 1/30/2019 SLH 
 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Resolution 19-R-09 
 

 
Recommendation:   Move to approve Resolution 19-R-09, expressing support for legislation that provides 

stewardship, health and wellbeing and connectivity for local and state parks. 
 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 



RESOLUTION 19-R-09 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF ALVIN CITY COUNCIL REQUESTING 
THE MEMBERS OF THE 86TH LEGISLATIVE SESSION OF THE STATE OF 
TEXAS TO SUPPORT LEGISLATION THAT PROVIDES STEWARDSHIP, 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING, AND CONNECTIVITY FOR LOCAL AND 
STATE PARKS. 

 
WHEREAS, the Texas communities, counties, and State protect and enhance the investments in all 
parks and open spaces providing stewardship; and 

 
WHEREAS, supporting conservation of open space and making public lands accessible for public 
use by supporting the sporting goods sales tax and the land and water conservation fund; and 

 
WHEREAS, supporting water and natural resources through conservation, presentation and the 
rights to access nature, the outdoors and recreational amenities; and 

 
WHEREAS, increasing physical activity and improving health and wellness by utilizing parks and 
recreation amenities and services; and 

 
WHEREAS, political subdivisions throughout the State of Texas depend on funding for services and 
programs that ensure access for all people to connect to nature and the outdoors; and 

 
WHEREAS, creating a livable, safe, and responsible community by supporting safe recreational 
amenities, pathways and trails; and 

 
WHEREAS, supporting the positive economic impacts of connecting our communities to nature and 
the outdoors from the Parks and Recreation Industry; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Alvin City Council that a copy of this resolution be presented to the 
Governor of Texas and the leadership of the 86th Texas Legislature. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF THE CITY OF                                                       
A L V I N , TEXAS: 

 
1. That members of the 86th Legislature of Texas seek support of legislation that provides 

stewardship, health and well-being, and connectivity for local and state parks. 
 
AND, IT IS SO RESOLVED. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 7th day of February 2019. 
 
 
CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS    ATTEST: 
 

            
By: _____________________________  By: __________________________ 
        Paul A. Horn, Mayor           Dixie Roberts, City Secretary  
 
 
 
 


	City Council Agenda 02/07/19
	Board & Commission Minutes
	Planning Commission Minutes 12/18/18
	Parks Minutes 12/4/18

	PUBLIC HEARING
	A. PH - SPA Martha's Vineyard Development
	Notice of Public Hearing


	CONSENT AGENDA
	A. City Council Minutes 1/17/19
	B. City Council Minutes 1/28/19 sp
	C. Res 19-R-05 Calling 5/4/19 General Election
	Resolution 19-R-05
	Exhibits

	D. Final Plat - Zuniga Place (4566 CR181)
	Zuniga Place Plat

	E. Master Prelim Plat - Mustang Ridge
	Mustang Ridge Plat


	OTHER BUSINESS
	A. Ord 19-C, Annexation Forest Heights 7
	Ordinance 19-C

	B. Sunrise Rotary Music Fest License Agreement
	Rotary Signed Agreement
	Community Wide Event Application
	Res 14-R-37 Donation Agreement

	C. Res 19-R-07, Alvin Museum Agreement Amendment
	Resolution 19-R-07
	2019 Museum Agreement Red-lined Version
	2019 Museum Agreement

	2017 Museum Agreement

	D. Res 19-R-08, Termination Utility Easements SE Corner of Bypass 35 HWY 6
	Resolution 19-R-08
	Easement Release 03 006784
	Easement Release 03 012892

	Utility Map

	E. Res 19-R-09, Local Parks & Rec Support to 86th Legislative Session of Texas
	Resolution 19-R-09





